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NOTICE

The FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY
LIMITED will be held at shorter notice on Friday, the 13% day of July, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at
- the Conference Room of The Tata Power Company Limited, Fort House, Mumbai 400 001, to
-transact the following business:- '

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopf the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2018 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon. -

2. Todeclare dividen'd on Equity Shares for the financial year ended 31t March, 2018.

Special Business
3. To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. S Ramakrishnan (DIN: 00005090), a Director liable to retire by
rotation, who does not seek re-election, be not re-appointed a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the vacancy, so created on the Board of Dlrectors of the
Company, be not filled.”

4. Appointment of Mr. Praveer Sinha as a Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolut[on with or wﬁhout maodification
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Praveer Sinha (DIN: 01785164), who was appointed as an
Additional Director under Section 1610f the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 10% May, 2018 and who holds office up to the date of the
Fifteenth Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom Notice under Section 160 of
the Act has been received from a member, signifying its intention to propose Mr. Sinha
as a candidate for the office of director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. PreveeriSinha be and is hereby appointed in a non-
‘executive capacity and he will not be responsible for the day-to-day affairs of the

Company."
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5.  Appointment of Mr. Ajay Kapoor as a Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification
as an Ordinary Resolution: '

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Ajay Kapoor (DIN:00466631), who was appointed as an
Additional Director under Section 161of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 215t June, 2018 and who holds office up to the date of
the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom Notice under Section 160
of the Act has been received from a member, signifying its intention to propose Mr.
Kapoor as a candidate for the office of director of the Company, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company. |

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kapoor be and is hereby appointed in a non-
executive capacity and he will not be responsible for the day-to-day affairs of the
Company."

NOTES:

1. The relative explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act), the details of the directors seeking re-appointment/appointment
“under item no. 3 above as required under Secretarial Standard - 2 on general
meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are annexed
hereto. ‘ - :

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND

AND VOTE ON A'POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY

NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE

THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF COMPANY CARRYING

VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH

PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR

SHAREHOLDER. '

A blank proxy form is sent herewith. ‘ :

4. The instrument appointing proxy, duly stamped completed and signed, should be
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of companies must be
supported by appropriate resolution issued on behalf of the nominating companies.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend

the meeting are requested to send to the Company duly certified copy of the

o
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relevant Board resolution authorizing such a representative to attend and vote on
their behalf at the meeting. . '

6. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open to inspection by
the members at the registered office of the Company on all working days up to the
date of Annual General Meeting between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.

7. The record date for the purpose of payment of payment of dividend would be 6t
July, 2018. '

8. In case.of Joint Holders attendlng the Meetmg, only such joint holder who is higher
in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

By Order of the Board of Ijirectors,_

Sd/- 7
Amey Naik
{Company Secretary)
ACS'No. A48149

Mumbai, 2™ July, 2018

Registered Office:

Carnac Receiving Station, -

34, Sant Tukaram Road,

Mumbai 400 009

CIN: U40100MH2003PLC143770
Website: www.tatapowertrading.com

E-mail: tptcimarketing@tatapower.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the following
Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under
Item No. 3, 4 and 5 of the accompanying Notice dated 2" July, 2018.

Item No. 3

Mr. S Ramakrishnan has been on the Board of the Company since December, 2004.
The Board places on record its sincere appreciation and recognition of the valuable
contribution and services rendered by Mr. S Ramakrishnan during his tenure as a
Director on the Board of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. S Ramakrishnan, Director is due to
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, he has not offered
himself for re-appoiniment to facilitate Tata Power's plans to reconstitute the Board,
resulting in vacancy on the Board; and, the Board proposes that the vacancy caused by
his retirement be not filled-up.

Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

Except Mr. S Ram’akris'hnan, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested in the Resolutions at
ltem No. 3.

item No. 4

Appointment of Mr. Praveer Sinha as a Director

Mr. Praveer Sinha was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 10t
May, 2018 by the Board of Directors under Section 161 of the Act and as per the Article
of Association of the Company. In terms of Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Sinha holds office
only up to the date of forthcomlng Annual General Meeting but is eligible for appointment
as Director. :

In compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Board recommends the
Resolution at [tem No. 5§ of the accompanying notice for approval by the Members of the
Company as an Ordinary Resolution. :
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Except Mr. Praveer Sinha, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or
interested in the Resolutions at ltem No. 4.

Item No. 5

Appointment of Mr. Ajay Kapoor as a Director-

Mr. - Ajay Kapoor was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 21st
June, 2018 by the Board of Directors under Section 161 of the Act and as per the Article
of Association of the Company. In terms of Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Kapoor holds
office only up to the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting but is eligible for
appointment as Director. ‘ :

In compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Board recommends the
' Resolution at ltem.No. 6 of the accompanying notice for approval by the Members of the
Company as an Ordinary Resolution.

Except Mr. Ajay Kapoor, being.an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested in the
Resolutions at Item No. 5. :

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Sdi-

Amey Naik
(Company Secretary)
. ACS No. A48149
Mumbai, 2"¢ July, 2018
Registered Office:

Carnac Receiving Station,
34, Sant Tukaram Road,
Mumbai 400 009
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Deta:ls of the Directors, seeking appomtment!re-appomtment at the forthcoming
Annual General Meetmg

Mr. Ajay Kapoor

Name of |Mr. Praveer Sinha
Director :
Date of Birth 8t April, 1962 19" June, 1964 -
Date of [ 10t May, 2018 21t June, 2018
Appointment '
Expertise in | Mr. Praveer Sinha has over three | Mr. Ajay Kapoor has extensive
| functional decades of experience in the| experience in all areas of finance,
areas power sector and has been| ERP implementations, and has
credited with transforming the handled_ matters re'latlng . _to
P : ‘| international collaborations, joint
power distribution sector and ventures in India and abroad,
development and setting up of | financial  restructuring,  policy
greenfield and brownfield power | advocacy, .capital raising, and
plants in india and abroad. acquisition besides handling legal
' advisory and has handled

electricity litigation matters at all
levels/forums.

Qualifications

Mr. Sinha holds a Master's
Degree in Business Law from
National Law School, Bengaluru
and is also professionally trained
as an Electrical Engineer. He is a
Research Scholar at the Indian
Institute of Technology Delhi and

Mr. Kapoor is an Honors graduate

. from the prestigious Shri Ram

College of Commerce, Delhi
‘University, India. A qualified
Chartered Accountant he also]|

holds MBA and LL.B degrees.

is also a visiting Scholar at

Massachusetts institute of

Technology, Boston, USA. .
Remuneration : -
Directorships 1.The Tata Power Company| 1. Powerlinks Transmission
held in other Limited _ Limited
companies Z.Iﬁ?teF;ower Renewable Energy_ 2. Duggar Hydro Power Limited
(exc.ludmg 3. Tata Power Delhi Distribution
foreign Limited
Companies) 4, Tata Power Solar System

Limited
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Name of Mr. Praveer Sinha Mr. Ajay Kapoor
Director _
‘Commiitee Member of Nomination and| -

Remuneration  Committee  of

positions  heid
in . other

companies

Tata Power Renewable Energy

Limited

Number
| Shares held

of

Nil

| Nil
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BOARD’S REPORT

To The Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Fifteenth Annual Report on the business and
operations of your Company and the Statements of Account for the year ended 31 March,

. 2018.

1.

Financial Results
' Figures in ¥ Crore

FY 18 FY 17
a) Net Sales/Income from other operations 3691.42 4,605.09
b) Operating Expenditure : 3652.97 4,576.23
¢) Operating Profit - 38.45 28.86
d) Add: Other Income ' 0.52 147
e) Less: Finance Cost ' ' 10.13 18.04
f) Profit before depreciation and tax B 28.84 12.29
'g) Less: Depreciation/ _ 4.57 3.13
Amortisation/Impairment : ' _
h) Profit Before Tax 24.27 9.16
i) Tax Expenses 9.28 3.98
j) Net Profit/ {Loss) after Tax 14,99 5.18
Dividend

During the year, the Directors have declared an interim dividend of 62.5% (6.25/- per
share of ¥ 10 each). Further, the Directors have recommended a final dividend of
6.25% (%0.625/- per share of ¥ 10 each), subjected to the approval of Members.

State of Company’s Affairs
Financial Performance

During the year, your Company reported a Profit after Tax (PAT) of ¥ 14.99 crore, as
against ¥ 5.18 crore for the previous year, an increase of 188.38%, primarily on
account of lesser losses from Dagachhu power trade, due to renegotiation of power
purchase agreement and better sales realisation from Dagachhu power trade. The
Operating Revenue was lower at ¥ 3752.32 crore, as against ¥ 4 673.22 crore mainly
on account of decrease in volume traded.

The Earnings per share (EPS) has increased to ¥ 9 37/- as against ¥ 3.24/- in the
previous year. -
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Business Environment

India has an installed generation capacity of 344 Giga Watt (GW) as on 313t March,
2018. Generation capacity in the country has been steadily increasing, driven by fresh
investments by private players. However, the growth in demand is not in line with the
capacity addition as a result the demand growth was less than that expected in 19th
EPS. As per Central Electricity Authority’'s (CEA) Monthly Report of March, 2018,
[ndia’s generating capacity comprises of 197 GW of coal based capacity, 25 GW of
gas based capacity, 45 GW of hydro capacity, 69 GW of renewable capacity and
about 7 GW of nuclear capacity.

In order to meet the increasing demand of power and as per Draft National Electricity
Plan, the capacity addition of 181.90 GW is targeted in XIIl plan (2018 — 22). Out of
181. 90 GW of capacity addition target, 54.37 GW will be added from Thermal, 16.42
GW will be added from Hydro, 2.80 GW from Nuclear, 23.48 GW from Wind and 84.84
GW will be added from solar generation. Out of the capacity addition target of 13.17
GW from conventional sources of power in FY18, 8,710 GW has been added from
Thermal plant and 795 GW capacity has been added from Hydro plant. Qut of the
capacity addition target of 14.55 GW from renewable sources of energy in FY18,
9,362GW from solar, 1,766 GW from Wind, 106 GW from Small Hydro and 528 GW
has been added in Blogas power.

The transmission sector plays an important role in the present power scenario which is
characterized by geographical and seasonal diversity factors impacting demand and
supply situation by facilitating transfer of power where required.

Indian Power Transmission System is one of the Iargest integrated electricity
transmission networks in the world. As per data available on Ministry of Power (MoP)
website, Inter-State Transmission System (ISTS) in India is continuously expanding
with current Inter — Regional Transmission capacity in excess of 86.45 GW. The
National Transmission Grid System is divided into five regional grids i.e. North, East,
West, South and the North-East. As per draft NEP, a capacity addition of 45.70 GW is
expected to be planned for 13" five year plan (FY 17-22). However, due to
commissioning of new power projects, the availability of power in Southern region has
increased significantly. This has resulted in reduced variance in the power market
rates in Southern Region as compared to rest of the country.

Further, Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) has issued a draft
Regulation on General Network Access (GNA} which will lead to correct projection of
inter-regional transmission capacﬂy addition thereby eliminating the inter-regional
transmission congestion.

Power supply position in the country has slightly deterlorated durlng FY18. As per
CEA Monthly Report of March, 2018, the gap between requirement and availability of
energy in maintained at 0. 70% in FY18. The gap between peak demand and supply
also increased from 1.6% during FY17 to 2.0% during FY18.
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In line with the revised Guidelines issued by Ministry of Power (MoP), total 134
tenders were floated by the Distribution Companies (Discoms) for short term power
purchase through competitive bidding on "DEEP" Portal followed by Reverse auction,
totalling more than 1,00,000 Mega Watt (MW) of power.

In addition, 3 Discoms had floated 5 tenders for purchase of power under Medium
term Power Procurement guidelines through "DEEP" portal followed by Reverse
Auction. However, 4 tenders were scrapped by Discoms due to ambiguity in the
bidding process resulting in higher tariff outcome.

The short term power prices of Day Ahead market have increased by 29% in FY18 as
compared to FY17. The major reason for increase in the short term prices are
increase in international coal price, below average monsoon, increase in Domestic
coal price and other events/government decisions such as no load shedding,
agriculture supply, elections efc. ‘

As per CERC Marketing Monitoring report, the Electricity traded in the short term

. power market during FY18 was 128 Billion Units (BUs), 10.68% of total generation;
comprising of 4.77% through Bilateral, 3.81% through power exchanges and 2.09%
through Unscheduled Interchange (Ul). The volume traded in short term power
market, has increased by 7.92% from FY17 to FY18.

The sector is currently facing several challenges such as
a. Lower trading Margins:

The competition has grown fierce due to an increase in the number of Central

_Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) licensed traders and with the pressure
of increasing market share. Due to this, trading margins are under pressure. New
trading licensees are aggressively trying to enter into the short term market with
lower trading margin.

b. Poor Financial health of Discoms:

. Although several states have raised tariffs in the last few years, the financial
condition of several distribution entities stili remains a matter of concern.
Improvement in financial health of Discoms would be crucial to power trading
market development. With the implementation of Ujwal DISCOM Assurance Yojna
(UDAY) Scheme, some of the Discom’s financial health have marginally improved.
However, at present, procurement by Discoms on the Case | route is not
progressing as envisaged, due to poor financial condition of Discoms. In addition,
Discom had to procure power at.a tariff higher than their APPC due to increase in
the short term rates during second half of the year, which has further deteriorated
‘the financial health of the Discom.

- ¢. Transmission Constraints:

Power trading was also adversely affected by continued corridor constrainté for
power flow from Eastern Region (ER) and Western Region (WR) to Northern
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Region (NR) leading to prevalence of high prices for the customers in the Northern
states and stranding of significant generating capacities in these regions. During
the year, there was a marginal corridor constraint for power flow from ER/WR to
Southern Region (SR).

d. Fuel price risk:

- There is an obligation on Discom for. competitive bidding through Case | or Case |
route for power procurement. Such procurement is not progressing as envisaged
earlier, as the generators are unwilling to take fuel price risks and would like it to
be built into the tariff. With increase in the imported fuel price, generators have also
stopped Long term supply to Discom, committed through competitive bidding,
resulting in increase-in short term demand of the Discom. Since, October 2017,
IPPs are facing shortage of Domestic coal supply (E-Auction) as a result of which
the prices of Auction coal have also increased significantly less availability of coal

supply.
e. Open access slow growth:

The unwillingness of Discoms to allow open access to its consumers, in spite of
binding provisions in the Electricity Act, 2003, is acting as a major barrier to further
growth and competition in the Power Trading sector. Growth in Open Access, is
constrained because of risks due to transmission corridor availability, regulatory
risks, restrictive open access regime being followed in various States and
excessive levels of cross subsidy charge. Further, due to increase in short term
market rates, open access power purchase has become unviable in some of the
states.

Operations

As the Company has created a renewable energy generation portfolio the operations
section is divided into Trading Operation and Generation Operations.

a. Tradmg Operation:

Your Company is the first company to be granted a license by the CERC in June,
2004

Your Company has traded 12,405 MUs in FY18 as compared to 14,583 MUs in
the previous year (decrease of about 14. 94% year on year). Your Company was
ranked the third largest trader with a market share of 10.29% in FY18 amongst
the top 11 traders. Further, in the area of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs)
trading and. Energy Saving Certificates (ESCerts) trading, your Company has
emerged as one of the [argest trader in the REC market during the year.

Your Company is the only trading company having presence in Noida, Mumbai
and Chennai and along with resident representatives in Ahmedabad, Bangalore,
Bhubaneswar, Chandigarh, Hyderabad and Kolkata. The trading operations are
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carried out from the Control Room at its Noida office and functions on 24x7 on
365 days basis. :

During the year, the Company has conceptualized and implemented a wind group
captive model for 21 MW Wagrai Windfarms Limited. The Company has also tied
up with solar generators for supply of solar power to open access consumers in
Karnataka. This has provided a long term stable revenue to the Company.

Under the Tata Electricity Account Mate (TEAM) initiative launched by Tata
Power, your Company is playing a key role in supplying conventional / renewable
power to several Tata Group Companies like Tata Consuitancy Services Limited,
The Indian Hotels Company Limited, Tata Motors Limited, Tata Communication
Limited, Tata Steel Limited, Tata Power  Solar Systems Limited, Tata Realty
Infrastructure Limited, etc and enabling them to achieve energy cost optimization.

In line with the approach of focusing on retail portfolio, your Company has sold
about 1,159 MUs to open access consumers during the year.

b. Generation Operation:

Your Company has set up renewable energy based generation projects in Tamil
Nadu, Gujarat and Jharkhand. The update on generation operations is as follows:

A. 1.25 MW Sastra Solar Rooftop Project, Tamil Nadu

Your Company has set up a 1.25 MW Solar Rooftop Project in Shanmugha

Arts, Science, Technology & Research Academy (SASTRA) University, Tamil

Nadu. The project was commissioned on 15t March, 2015, and a Power

Purchase Agreement (PPA) is entered into with SASTRA University for a
- period of 15 years.

During the yeatr, the prOJect generated 1.84 [VIUs {1.89 MUs in FY17) at a Plant
Load Factor (PLF) of about 16.80%.

'B. 4 MW Wind Project Rojmal District Gujarat

4 MW (2 x 2 MW) Wind Power Plant at Rojmal, District Botad, Gujarat was
commissioned on 17t April, 2015. The power to be generated from the Project
is tied up with Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam limited (GUVNL) at a preferential tariff
of ¥ 4.15/kWh for a period of 25 years.

During the year, the project generated 7.07 MUs (7.61 MUs in FY17) at a PLF
of about 20.18%.

C. 3 MW Noamundi Solar Project, West Singhbhum District, Jharkhand
Your company has set up a 3 MW Solar Power Project at Noamundi, West

Singhbhum District, Jharkhand. A PPA is entered into with Tata Steel for a
period of 15 years. The project was commissioned on 23 May 2017.
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During the year from the date of commissioning, the project generated 3.71
‘MUs at a PLF of about 16.46% (computed from commlssmnlng on 234 May,
2017).

Upgrading IT Infrastructure

Your Cbrﬁpany implemented various IT initiatives in FY18 fo strengthen business
processes resuiting value addition to the business. A major upgrade being alignment
of existing process and output in line with Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Further, Application Development for Qualified Co-ordinating Agency (QCA) business
has been initiated to improve the efficiency and response time to the customers and
Application Development for Energy Management System (EMS) as a service to the
Discoms has been |n1t1ated to increase the profitability through cost savings by source
optlmlzatlon

Tata Business Excellence Model (TBEW)

The Tata Business Excelience Model (TBEM) matrix has been conceived to deliver
strategic direction and drive business improvements at the Tata Group. Aimed at
enabling Tata Group companies capture the best global business processes and
practices, the business excellence assessment model invests Tata Group companies
with the inherent dynamism fo evolve and keep pace with ever-changing business
performance parameters. The main objectives of the Tata business excellence model
assessment methodology is to enhance value for all stakeholders and contribute to
marketplace success, maximise enterprise-wide effectiveness and capabilities, and
deliver organisational and personal learning. :

Future Growth Areas

Ministry of Power issued Revised Guidelines for purchase of power by Discom on
Medium term basis through online portal followed by Reverse Auction. In FY17, it was
seen that there has been steep increase in the prices of short term transactions due to -
several reasons such as increase in.imported coal price, less availability of domestic
coal, lesser monsoon, political decisions, etc. it is expected that the relatively higher
rates in short term market would continue to prevail in coming years. In FY17, we have
seen that few Discoms namely India Power Corporation Limited (IPCL), Brihun
Mumbai Electricity Supply and Transport (BEST) Undertaking and Noida- Power
Company Limited (NPCL) have come out with Medium term power procurement
tenders. It is expected that Discom would come out with more Medium term tenders in
near future to cater to their power requirements.

The volume of energy procured by Open Access consumer has decreased in FY18
due to increase in the short term power market rates. The impediments in the sourcing
power of open access at reasonable rates have led to purchase of power by consumer
on Group Captive mode. Your Company is geared up to execute Group Captive
contracts with various consumers for supplying power on Open Access.
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With the deficit of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs), lower tariff of renewabie
generation and higher merchant tariffs, it is expected that renewable power purchase
“by Discom and Open Access consumer will increase in FY18. Discom would procure

~ power on short term from Renewable sources, especially from wind & solar. Your
company is actively exploring opportunities for tying up the renewable source of power
in FY18 and offering power to the consumer on Open Access at a competitive tariff.

o Customer Satisfaction Survey

Your Company conducts the Consumer Satisfaction Survey (C-Sat Survey) every year
and adopted CAWI (Computer Aided Web Interview) methodology for obtaining
customer response utilizing free service from Qualtrics.com for survey. The C-Sat
Survey were divided into four Segments i.e. Service Quality, Staff accessibility and
complaint resolution, Commercial aspects and Brand Imagery. The C-Sat Survey
Score for FY18 was at 83% which was similar to that of FY17.

4, Reserve

. The net movement in the various reserves of the Company for FY18 and the previous
year are as follows: : :

‘ g crore
Particulars - : FY18 FY17
Revaluation Reserve ' Nil Nil
Securities Premium Account : _ 20.90 20.90
General Reserve , 13.55 13.55
Retained Earnings ‘ 105.87 107.40
Deemed capital contribution 0.08 - 0.08

5. . Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
s Retirements/resignations

Mr. N N Misra (DIN: 00575501) resigned with effect from 19t Fébruary; 2018 from the
Board of Directors, due to official preoccupations. The Board thanked him for his
services and contributions.

Mr. Seethapathy Chander (DIN: 02336635) term in the office as Independent Direcior
had ended on 25" March, 2018. The Board thanked him for his services and
contributions. ‘ ‘

Mr. S Ramakrishnan is liable to retire rotation and has not sought reappointment.
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Number of Board Meetings and dates

Five Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two Board
Meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which said meetings were held

‘are as follows:

i) 5t May, 2017

i) 22n July, 2017

iii) 318t October, 2017
iv) 19t January, 2018
V) 20% March, 2018

The names and categories of the Directors of the Board and their attendance at the

‘Board Nleetmg is as under.

Sr. Name of the Director Category of | Number of Board

No. , Directorship Meetings attended
1 Mr. § Ramakrishnan Non-Independent, Non 5/5
‘ Executive ‘
2 | Mr. Seethapathy Chander independent, : 35
3 | Mr. N. N Misra Non Executive 4/4
4 | Mr. Anil Sardana 5/5
5 | Mr. Ashok Sethi Non-Independent, Non 5/5
6 | Ms. Anjali Kulkarni 5/5
7 | Mr. Sanjeev Mehra Executive _ 5/5

General Body Meetings
Annual General Meeting (AGM) for FY17 was held on 28" August, 2017.
Committees of the Board

The Company has following Committees of the Board; the number of meetings held by
the committees is aiso mentioned:

Audit Commlttee meetings held on 5t May, 2017 22" July, 2017, 17 October, 201?
and 19t January, 2018.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee meetings held on 5% May, 2017,
220 July, 2017, 17% October, 2017 and 19% January, 2018.

Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) Committee meetings heid on 5% May, 2017,
220 July, 2017, 315t October, 2017 and 19% January, 2018,

We confirm the above is a complete list of all Shareholder / Member meetings, Board
and Committee meetings held during FY17. :
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6.1

8.2

¢ The following disclosures shall be made on the remuneration of directors. Ali elements
of remuneration package of individual directors summarized under maJor groups, such
as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc.

Added as Annexure V

Regulatory

Reguiatory Environment -

a. Draft CERC Requlatlons on General Network Access and Grant of
Connectmty

CERC issued draft Regulations on General Network Access and Grant of
Connectivity. GNA will replace the existing open access reguiations. Under the new
philosophy, transmission planning will be based on anticipated load demand and
generation and flexibility to be provided in the power system to allow operation of
the generatmg stations on economic principle of least cost of generation and

supply:

Trading Licensee under the prevailing regulations is eligible to apply for Long Term
Access (LTA) or Medium Term Open Access (MTOA). In the draft regulations it has
been proposed that only grid connected entities can apply for GNA and the trading
licensees will not be entitled to obtain GNA. However, Trading Licensees can buy
and sell power on behalf of the grid connected entities. It has been proposed that
the existing LTA with trading licensees will be deemed to be the GNA of the
concerned grid connected entities.

In case of a frading licensee buying power from the neighboring country through a

long term PPA and not having any LTA and long term Power Supply Agreement,
there is no clarity as to how GNA will be obtained. ,

Regulatory Orders/Petitions of relevance

a. CERC Order on Maithon Power Limited (MPL)

On 27t December, 2017, CERC has issued Order with respect to MPL for truing up
for the period from FY12 to FY14 and tariff determination for the period from FY15
to FY19. ,

Your Company has long term contract for purchase 600 MW of power from MPL,
which has been in turn sold to Tata Power Delhi Distribution Company Limited
(TPDDL) and to West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited
(WBSEDCL). MPL bills the Company on the basis of tariff as determined by CERC.
The tariff charged by the Company to TPDDL and WBSEDCL is linked to CERC
determined tariff for MPL. '
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Based on the CERC Order, MPL has.issued a credit note of ¥ 386.53 crore o your
Company and your Company has in turn issued credit notes totaling to ¥ 386.53
crore on TPDDL and WBSEDCL. On account of this credit notes, your Company
has reduced Revenue from Power Supply as well as Cost of Power Purchased in
the current year by ¥ 386.53 crore. Correspondingly, your Company has reduced
receivable from TPDDL and WBSEDCL and payable to MPL by ¥ 386.53 crore.

b. Hon’ble S_upreme Court’s direction allowing resumption of trading

After the CERC Order dated 30% March, 2017 on reduction of prices for RECs,
many generating companies had filed petitions stating that their stock of unsold
RECs would not get cleared at such low prices. They had first gone to Appellate
Tribunal of Electricity (ATE) to suggest a way to clear the existing REC stock. While
the ATE agreed to introduce a vintage multiplier, it refused to put a stay on trading
of RECs. When the petition was taken to the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it not only put
a stay on the frading, it has also stayed the new price regime which was introduced
by the CERC.

Hon'ble Supreme Court has allowed conditional tradmg of Non-solar RECs at old
RECs prices (i.e. ¥ 1,500/REC), with the difference between old and new prices fo
be deposited with the regulators pending the final order from ATE on the matter.
Final order from ATE in the matter is awaited. Further, Solar RECs trading is
suspended until final order of ATE.

7. Risk Management Framework and Internal Financial Controls
s Risk Management System

. Your company is 1SO 31000 certified company. It has instituted a risk management
system to support the delivery of the Company’s strategy by managing the risks of
failing to achieve business objectives.

By focusing on the early identification of key risks, it enables your company to conduct
~ a detailed scrutiny of the existing level of mitigation and further management actions
required to either reduce or remove the risk.

On periodic basis, each functional lead carries out a detailed risk review exercise and
updates the risk register. The register ensures consistency of approach in
management and reporting of risks. Risk Management framework aims at achieving
the following:

Identify and classify each risk

Assess the inherent risk impact and likelihood,

Identify mitigation measures;

Identify risk owner who has responsibility for the timely implementation of the
agreed mitigation plan; and

+ Report on implementation of risk mitigation action plan.

-* - - L
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Risk Management Sub Commlttee (RMSC) Meetings revisit the risk management
framework an nually.

Due to rigorous Risk Management system of rating the Discoms, your Company’s
debtors outstanding is one of the lowest in the power trading industry.

s Business Continuity and Disaster Management Program (BCDMP)

Your Company is certified ISO 22301:2012 Company for BCDMP. Mockdrills -and
Table Top Exercise were carried out during the year to increase awareness and
prepare the team for any eventuality. We have identified the processes under L1, L2,
L3 and L4 processes. In-line with the requirement of the certification, it has developed
Damage Assessment Team, Technical Team and Operation Team to conduct devise
the plan in case Business Continuity or Disaster Management is invoked.

s Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has appointed Mr. Parshuram Date, Chief - Internal Audit & Risk
Management of Tata Power as Internal Auditor-of the Company. The Internal Auditors
endeavours to make meaningful contributions to the organisation’s overall
governance, risk management and internal controls. The function reviews and ensures
sustained effectweness of Internal Financial Controls by adoptmg a systematlc
approach.

Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Auditors’ Report shall
state whether the Company has adequate Internal Financial Controls (IFC) system in

- place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. The Statutory Auditors shall
report on the existence of adequate |FC and its operatlonal effectiveness for the .
financial year. :

As.per section 134 of the Act, Directors of the Conipany, based on the representations
received from the Management are to confirm in the Directors Responsibility
Statements that the Internal Financial controls are not only adequate, but are also
operating effectively. )

With this objective in mind and to fulfil the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,
in FY17, the internal auditors have identified key controls. The Company has adopted
the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations (COSO) framework. COSO is a leading
framework, which provides guidance on design and evaluation of internal controls. It
provides assurance of financial controls in place at the level of functional heads and at
top management level. This has helped in assessing the effectiveness and efficiency
of operational controls, enhanced governance and consideration of anti-fraud
expectations, reliability of financial reporting and statutory compliances. Attributes with
internal control deficiency are identified with action plan to be taken and the target
dates

11
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For the Business Process level, controls are evaluated through internal audits and -
Control Self-Assessment (CSA). These CSAs have also been rolied out across all
functions in the Company.

The Internal Audit process includes review and evaluation of process robustness,
effectiveness of controls and compliances. It-also ensures adherence to policies and
systems, and mitigation of operational risk perceived under each area under audit.
internal Audits are classified into vital, essential and desirable, based on the analysis
of process impact of Company’s Strategic Objectives. Post the audit, process is rated
through Risk Control Index (RCl) and Process Robustness index (RCl) given by the
Internal ~ Auditors.  Significant observations - including recommendations for
improvement of the business processes are reviewed with the Management before
reporting to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews the Internal Audit
Reports and the status of implementation of the agreed action plan.

On the review of Internal Audit observations and actions taken on audit observations,

' we can state that there aré no adverse observations having material impact on
financials or commercial |mpI|cat|on or material non- compliances which have not been
acted upon.

Control Self-Assessment (CSA): CSA process followed this vear as well, whereby
responses of all process owners are used to assess buiit in internal controls in each
process. This helps the Company to identify focus audit areas, design audit plan and
support CEO/CFO certification for internal controls. The CSA questionnaire is
designed to test effectiveness of deployment of existing controls for processes
including the ones which are not to be audited as per audit plan. The responses
received from process owners on the questionnaire are analysed.

Process .Robustness lndex (PRI): The processes are examined to assess their
robustness primarily from the perspective of system driven controls which ensure
deviations from the defined process do not occur due to manual interventions. In case
controls have not been embedded in the system, other compensating controls such as
maker-checker are exercised o assess the robustness of the process. This index is
computed on the basis of existence of robust controls and not on the basis of extent of
implementation of these controls.

The Statutory Auditors carry out a limited quarterly review and these reports have not
reported any adverse findings. The Company’s Secretarial Audit carried out in the
current year has not indicated any major lapses.

8. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism:

The Company believes in the conduct of affairs of its constituents in a fair and
transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty,
integrity and ethical behaviour. In line with the Tata Code of Conduct (TCOC), any
actual or potential violation, howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, is a matter
of serious concern for the Company. The role of the employees in reporting such-
violations of the TCOC is critical to its implementation. :

12
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9.1

9.2

Vigil Mechanism has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for
employees of the Company to approach the Chief Ethics Counsellor (CEC).

Sustainability
Safety — Care for our People

Safety Statistics FY18:

Sl | Safety. Parameters (Employees and = | e L By
:NQ.' |:contractors) - - S FY18 ) 'FY_17
1 | Fatality (Number) __ ' NIL NIL
9 L'i_'l[:R (Lost Time Injuries Frequency Rate per NIL NIL
million man hours)
3 Total Injuries Frequency Rate (TIFR) (Number NIL NIL
of Injuries per million man hours)
4 | First Aid Cases (Number) _ NIL - NIL

. Care for our Community/Community Relations

Your Company has a CSR Policy in place, the CSR Committee passed the policy on '
21st October, 2015, which was revisited on 13»"1 May, 2016. The CSR budget for FY18
was ¥ 54.82 lakhs.

Your Gompany has invested in following schemes under CSR activities:

. SASTRA:

Your company has invested ¥ 3.77 lakhs in CSR activities to be undertaken by
SASTRA University in areas surrounding the University in Tamil Nadu.

a. Sccial Capital and Institution Building

The objective of the project was to empower local unemployed youth through
pre-approved skill development programs to pursue their future micro-venture/
business and create avenues for their sustainable livelihood through
entrepreneurial orientation and assistance.

The target group‘was 100 trainees o be identified from 10 villages near
SASTRA University.

After conducting a baseline survey to identify beneficiaries, lectures and hands
on experience was to be provided by experienced frainers to fuel

. entrepreneurial spirit within the beneficiaries so they may consider opening
their own micro-venture businesses after the program.

13



TATA POWER TRADING CO. LTD.

I TATA

b. Livelihood Improvement through capacity building of SHG

The objective was dissemination of product information and providing a
“platform for "Exhibition-cum-sale” of products made by them. 3 such events
were proposed to be organized. The target group was 35 SHGs covering 500

woemen.

Tata Power Community Development Trust (TPCDT):

Your company signed an M'OU with TPCDT for an amount of ¥ 45 lakhs for FY18,
to de dispersed for various programs in Haldia, details of which are given below:

a. Education Excellence Program

The objective of the program was- (i) To reduce drop out and enhance
enrolment; (i} To retain all children in project area between 6 to 14 years age
group; (i} To ensure increased learning outcome; and (iv) To ensure equal
educational opportunity for all with focus on girl child in Haldia. Key activities
undertaken to achieve the objectives include - awareness in parents and

_children - for mainstreaming dropouts/enhancing enrolment; education

resources in primary schools; assessment of reading/writing/retention skills for
students; Teachers Training; formulation and development of TLIVE and night
coaching & career guidance.

. Livelihood & Employability

The objective was to improve the quality of life for the community and enhance
income leve!l of the communities through skill development of youth and SHG
women. Key activities undertaken to generate livelihood and employability
include SRI paddy cultivation; commercial vegetable cultivation, commercial
nursery seed bed preparation; fish spawn liberation; fishery and animal
husbandry. "

. Financial Inclusion

The objective of the project was to bromote and strengthen women SHGs and

- SHG-based institutions thereby empowering women for sustainable Iiveliho‘od.

14
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Key activities undertaken to achieve the objectives were - formation of new
SHGs, establishment of Bank linkages for 100% SHGs and registration under
NRLM/NULM, Bank Loans for SHGs for starting income generation initiatives
and promotion of adult literacy program for SHG women.

d. Integrated Water harvesting

The objective of the program was to enhance ground water level and help the
farmers for sustainable agriculture and fisheries. Key activities undertaken to
achieve this objective included selection of farmers for integrated farming,
excavation of ponds in 7 acres of land and dressing the excavated soil
surrounding the embankment of ponds and conducting skill training on fish
‘cultivation and vegetable cultivation in collaboration with Government
Departments.

1. ARADHYA VT Centre:

Your Company has spent ¥ 6.23 lakhs in the prbgrammed undertaken at
ARADHYA VT Centre in Shakurpur (Dethi). Vocational trainings were provided to
students (50% under SC/ST category) under various categories as- indicated
below: ' : _

a) 92 students were provided training on course of Beauty Learning.
b) 152 Students were provided Computer Training.
¢) 60 students were trained on Remedial Education Centre.

15
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9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Care for our Environment

Your Company addresses various aspects of environment conservation such as
resource conservation, energy efficiency, renewable energy certificates trading. Your
Company strives to create environmentally responsible employees by promoting and
showcasing individual efforts in green initiatives through Greenolution. The employees
consider the aspects of Greenolution while carrying out process reengineering.

Human Resources
Manpower

As on 318t March, 2018, Tata Power Trading Company Ltd. had 47 employees on its
payrolls.

Employee Engagement

The Company conducts an Employee Engagement Survey, outsourced to Aon Hewitt,
for its employees annually. The results were shared with management and action
plans were developed to address the concerns. Various employee engagement .
activities were conducted during the year:

» Employee's suggestions and issues were identified and addressed through
Engagement Action Planning (EAP) workshops.

e All initiatives identified under EAP workshops have been successfully closed in the
year.

» HR Connect, Pulse Connect, Townhalls and Knowledge Shating Sessions were -
organized for all employees. This helped in establishing connect with employees and
understanding their issues for speedy and smooth resolution.

e Various rewards and recognition programs were organized for employees.
Xpressions, an online portal for recognition and building connect, was used
extensively by employees.

Capability Development
Key initiatives taken:

Based on training needs identified at the start of the Training Cycle, training programs
were deployed for all employees. These training needs were identified with view of
current and future functional requirements. Various trainings and workshops were
organized during the year for the development and ‘enhancement of skills of
employees. Some of the key programs that were organized include the following:
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e Management Development programs were organized to build managerla]
capability of people managers.

J Employees were nominated for both functional and behavioral trainings, based on
training needs identified for them. :

s A training-program on Customer Relationship Management, was conducted for all
employees, to improve the employee's customer responsiveness and customer
relationship management skills.

e Awareness programs on POSH (Policy on Sexual Harassment) and Ethics was
organized for employees.

10.4 Sexual Harassment

11.

12.

Disclosure under the Sexaal Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: '

The Company has a Policy on Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal}
Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress

- complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,

contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed

~ off during the FY18:

No of complaints received: ~ NIL

No of complaints disposed off: - NIL

No of cases pending for more than 90 days: - NIL

No of workshops/ awareness program: : 3

Nature of action taken by the employer.or District officer: Not applicable

Credit Rating

Your Company’s long term credit facilities from banks are rated as ‘A’ by India Rating
Agency and short term credit facility from banks was rated as ‘A1’ by India Rating
Agency. Commercial Paper of the Company has been assigned ‘A1+ rating with the
guarantee of Tata Power.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186

On two occasions during the previous year, the company had invested in Inter-
Corporate Deposit as a part of normal working capital management The detalls
of investment are provided in Annexure IV.
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13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

% crore
Particuiars — Standalone ' FY18 | FY17
Foreign Exchange Earnings mainly on account of interest, 0 0
dividend
Foreign Exchange Outflow mainly on account of:
Fuel purchase 0 0
Interest on foreign currency borrowings, NRIi dividends 0 0
Purchase of capital equipment, components and spares 0.03 0.04
and other mlscellaneous expenses

Dlscloeure of Particulars - Related Party Transactions

The Board has adopted a Policy on dealing with transactions entered with Related
Parties. Related party transactions can present a potential or actual conflict of interest
which may be against the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders.
Considering the requirements for approval of related party transactions as prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Company has formulated guidelines for
identification of related parties and the proper conduct and documentation of all
related party transactions.

During the year, the Company did not enter into any transactions with related parties
which were not at arm’s length.

 Auditors

M/s S. R. Batlibot & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, who are the statutory auditors

of your Company, hold office until the conclusion of the 19 Annual General Meeting.

Auditors’ Report

Extract of Auditor’s report is given in Annexure Vi.
Secretarial Audit Report

Extract of Secretarial Auditor's report is given in Annexure VII.
Directoi‘s’ Respeneibility Statement |

Based on the framework of IFC (Internal Financial Controls) and compliance syetems
established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory

“and secretarial auditors including audit of IFC over financial reporting by the- statutory

auditors and the reviews performed -by Management and the relevant Board
Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the
Company’s Internal Financial Control were adequate and effective during the FY18.

‘Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of

Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:
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(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed and that there are no material departures;

(iiy They have, in the selection of the accounting policies consulted the Statutory
Auditors and have applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the fmanc;laE year and of the
profit of the Company for that period,;

(i)  They have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and
ability -for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safe guarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

_(ivy  They have prepared the annual accounts on a'going concern basis;

(V) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively;

(vi)  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.
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ANNEXURE | — CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION

Conservation of Energy: The disclosures stlpu!ated under Section 134(3) (m) read with Rule 8
of the Companles (Accounts} Rule, 2014 pertaining to conservation of energy are not
applicable to the Company.

A. Conservation of Energy ~ Nil

B. Technology absofptidn, adaptation and innovation

1 Efforts, in brief, made towards Technology Absorptlon Nil
adaptation and innovation

2 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts Nil

3 In case of imported technology (imported during the last five | Nil

years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year),
following information may be furnished:
a) Technoiogy imported
b} Year of Import
c) Has technology been fully absorbed
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken
place, reasons thereof and future plans of action

1. TECHNCLOGY ABSORPTION - NIL

2. TECHNOLOGIES BEING REVIEWED/ADOPTED - NIL

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-
S Ramakrishnan
Chairperson
(DIN: 000050920}

Mumbai, 25" April, 2018
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Annexure |l — Annual Report on CSR Activities

1

A brief outline of the
company's CSR policy,

| including overview of

projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-
link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs.

TPTCL has been actively working on five thrust areas
in CSR: -

* Primary Education with focus on girl child

* Health and Drinking Water

+ Livelihood and Employability

+ Social Capital and Infrastructure

» Inclusive Growth

The Company's CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken, are
provided on the Company website:
hitp://tatapowertrading.com/pdf/CSR-Policy.pdf

2 | The composition of the CSR | 1. Ms. Anjali Kulkarni (Chairperson)
committee 2. Mr. Seethapathy Chander
| -' ' _ 3. Mr. Sanjeev Mehra
3 | Average net profit of the ¥ 27 .41 crore-(as per Section 198 of Companies Act,
company for last three 2013) '
- | financial years.
4 | Prescribed CSR Expenditure | ¥ 54.82 lakhs
- | {two percent of the amount
as in item 3 above) :
5 | Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) | Total amount to be spent for .| ¥ 55.05 lakhs
the financial year
(b) { Amount unspent, if any Nil

(c)

Manner in which the amount
spent during the financial
year is detailed below

Details provided below
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GSR Committee that the
implementation and monitoring
of CSR policy, is in compliance
with CSR objectives and Pohcy
of the company

(1) (2) (3) 4 (5) (6) 7 (8)
- | C8R “Secfor in which Project/ - Amount Amount Cumulati | Amount
Sl project or | the projectis Program Outlay Spent on ve spent:
No activity covered (Budget) | projects or | expendit | Direct or
identified project programs ure up to | through
] wise {In INR} 31/03M18 | impleme
(Specify {InINR} [|gubheads: | {InINR} | ntation
local areal Direct and agency
state and Overheads
district) o
e  Child Primary
ARADHYA |.  Education Sakurpur, .
1 VT Center |«  Vocational Delhi 6,45,640 6,23,452 6,23,452 Direct
Training '
Social Capital and | Thanjavur, :
Institution Building | Tamil Nadu | 1+57:000 | 1.67,000 Direct
2 SASTRA Thanjavur 3.77.000
University Livelihood & : o ‘
oroverment Kumbakon | 2,20,000 | 2,20,000 Direct
P am, Tamil
Nadu
Education 26,00,000 | 26,00,000
excellence !
Farm and Non- 10,00,000 | 10,00,000 | A
Farm Livelihood Haldia, 45,00,000 Implgmgn
3 TPCDT Empowering West ‘ Agt;aet:&r; _
Community Bengal 5,00,000 | 5,00,000 TPCDT
women through
SHG promotion
Integrated Water 4.00.000 4.00.000
Harvesting s T
Total - - 55,22,640 | 55,00,452 | 55,00,452 -
4 In case the company has failed | The Company has met the requirement of amount to be spend on
to spend the two percent of the CSR activities,
average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part
thereof, the company shall
provide the reasons for not
spending the amount in its
Board Report ‘ : _ '
5 A responsibility statement of the | The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in

‘compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE Ill = RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

) Po!fcy' on

dealing

. with

Related

Party

http://tatapowertrading.com/resources/downloads.php

Transactions -

» Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including

cerfain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto (FORM AOC-2)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis:

Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration Salient Date (s) of | Amount paid
related party | contracts/ terms approval as advances,
and nature of | arrangements/ including by the | if any
relationship transactions value Board

None :

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name of the Nature of Duration | Salient terms Date (s) | Amount

Related Party and | Contracts/ including value | of paid as

Nature of Relation | Arrangements/ approval | advances
' Transactions by the , if any

, ' - Board

Tata Power Delhi Supply of Power | Aprit 2017 | As per CERC N.A. Nil

Distribution Limited to March | Regulation/Order

(Fellow subsidiary) » 2018

Tata Power Solar Supply of Power | April 2017 | Linked fo N.A. Nil

Systems Limited to March Exchange

(Fellow Subsidiary) 2018 discovered price

Welspun Rendering of April 2017 | QCA Service N.A. Nil

Renewable Energy | Services to March

Limited 2018

(Fellow Subsidiary) : '

Welspun Solar Rendering of April 2017 | QCA Service N.A. Nil

Kannada Private Services to March

Limited 2018

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Tata Power Rendering of April 2017 | QCA Service N.A. Nil

Renewable Energy | Services to March

Limited : 2018

(Fellow Subsidiary) .
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Name of the Nature of Duration | Salient terms Date {s) | Amount
Related Party and | Contracts/ including value | of paid as
Nature of Relation | Arrangements/ approval | advances

Transactions by the , if any
' Board

Vagarai Windfarms | Rendering of April 2017 | Consuitancy for N.A, Nil
Limited Services to March | Group Captive

(Fellow Subsidiary) 2018 '

The Tata Power Revenue from April 2017 | Service Charges | N.A. Nil
Company Limited | Sale of REC to March '

(Holding Company) | certificate 2018

The Tata Power Purchase of April 2017 | Linked to Tender/ | N.A. 1 Nil
Company Limited Power to March Exchange '

(Holding Company) 2018 discovered price

Maithon Power Purchase of April 2017 | As per CERC N.A. Nil
Limited Power to March | Regulation/Order '
(Fellow Subsidiary) | , 2018

The Tata Power Receiving of April 2017 | Rent, Facility & | N.A. Nil
Company Limited Services to March Other services

(Holding Company) 2018

Tata Power Solar Receiving of April 2017 | O&M Charges N.A. Nil
Systems Limited Services to March - '

(Fellow Subsidiary) 2018 _

The Tata Power Reimbursement April 2017 | OA /SOC MOC | N.A. Nil
Company Limited = | of Expenses to March | charges

{Holding Company) 2018 ' :

Tata Power Delhi Reimbursement | April 2017 | OA /SOC MOC N.A. Nil
Distribution Limited | of Expenses | toMarch | charges

(Fellow subsidiary) 2018

Maithon Power Reimbursement | April 2017 | OA/SOC MOC N.A. Nil
Limited of Expenses {0 March charges

(Fellow Subsidiary) 2018

Tata Power Solar | Reimbursement | April 2017 | OA/SOC MOC N.A. Nil
Systems Limited - of Expenses to March charges ‘

(Fellow Subsidiary) 2018 :

The Tata Power Inter Corporate | April 2017 | ICD given/taken N.A. Nil
Company Limited | Loans - to March '

(Holding Company) 2018

The Tata Power Purchase of April 2017 | At written down N.A. Nil

- Company Limited | Property, plant & to March value
(Holding Company) equipment 2018
The Tata Power Sale of Property, | April 2017 | At written down | N.A. Ni
Company Limited plant & to March value
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Salient terms

(Holding Company)

Name of the Nature of Duration Date (s) | Amount
Related Party and | Contracts/ including value | of paid as
Nature of Relation | Arrangements/ approval | advances
- | Transactions by the , If any
Board
equipment 2018

Mumbai, 25" April, 2018

“On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/- .

S Ramakrishnhan
Chairperson
(DIN: 00005090)
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Annexure IV—Loans, guarantees, securities and investments made

Guara | Secu | Acquis
Loans ntees | rities | itions
Natur | Nam | Amou | Ten | Purpos | Rat | Dat | Count | Detail | No. & | Term | Whet
e of|e of/nt offure |e of |le of|e of [ er s of|kind of|s &/ her
transa | Pers | Loan/ propos | Inte | mat | guara | secur | securiti | condi | preju
ction . | on/ Securi ed rest | urity | niee ities | es tions | dicial
(whet | Body | ty/ utilizati provi to
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ANNEXURE V — ANNUAL RETURN

Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 315t March 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] '

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN _ U40100MH2003PLC 143770
2. Registration Date _ 31st December, 2003
3. Name of the Company S Tata Power Trading Company Limited
4. Category / Sub-Category of the Public Company
Company

5. Address of the Registered office and Carnac Receiving Station, 34-Sant
contact details Tukaram Road, Carnac Bunder,
| Mumbai, Maharashtra

8. Whether listed Company No

7. Name, Address and Contact details of | N.A.
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.

| . PRINCIPAL BUS!NVESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing‘ 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall
be stated:- '

SI. Name and Description of | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of
No. main products / services | Product/ service the Company
I Electrical Energy 2716 100% |
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lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sl. | Name and CIN/GLN . Holding/ % Of Applicable

No | Address of the Subsidiary/A | Shares | Section
Company ssociate Held '

1 The Tata Power | L28920MH1919PLC000567 | Holding 100% | 2(46)
Company
Limited

IV.SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)

(iy Category-wise Shareholding

No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end | %
beginning of the year (in crore) | of the year (in crore) Chan
Category of Demat| Physic | Total % of Demat | Physical| Total ! % of | ge
Shareholders al Total : Total | durin
Shares ‘ Share | g the
S year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) '
Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp. - 1.60 1.60] 100% -1 1.60] 1.60| 100% 0%

e} Banks / Fl

f) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) - 1.60| 1.60] 100% . 1.60] 1.60| 100% | - 0%
(1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRls - - - - - - - - -
Individuals '

b) Other — ] . N - i : -
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp. ] - T . 5 - 3 : 3

d) Banks / FI i . - - - - - - -

e) Any Other.... 1 - -l - - - - - -

Sub-total (A)
2):-

Total | 180 1.60] 100% | 1e0| 160] 100%| 0%
shareholding ' S
of Promoter (A}
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(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Instituiions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govi(s)

e) Venture
Capital
Funds

{ f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i} Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i} Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto

Rs. 1 lakh

i} Individual
shareholiders
holding
nominal share -
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c¢) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
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Company Limited
and
Mr. Sanjeev Mehra

0%

TATA POWER TRADING CO. LTD. ' TATA
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares held - - - - - - - - -
by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs : : _
Grand Total - 1.60 1.60| 100% - 1.60| 1.60 | 100% 0%
(A+B+C) ] ’ ]
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
S| | Shareholder’'s Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of | %
.No | Name beginning the chan
of the year year ge
No. of % of % of No. of % of %of |in
Shares total Share | Shares total Share | share
Shares | s Shares |s - holdi
of the | Pledg ofthe | Pledg |ng
Comp |ed/ Comp |ed/ durin
any encum any encum | g
bered | bered | the
to to year
total total
shares shares
1 | The Tata Power 15,099,994 |  100% - 115,999,994 | 100% - -
Company Limited .
. 2 | The Tata Power 1 0% - 0 0% - -
Company Limited
and
Mr. A S Bapat
3 | The Tata Power 1 0% - 1 0% - -
Company Limited
and
Mr. H M Mistry
4 | The Tata Power 1 0% - -1 0% - -
Company Limited
and
Mr. Sanjay Dube
5 | The Tata FPower 1 0% - 0 0% - -
Company Limited
and
Mr. Deepak
Mahendra
6 | The Tata Power 1 - 1 0% - -
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S| | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the Shareholding at theend of | %
No | Name beginning - the chan
' of the year | year ge
No. of % of % of No. of % of | %of in
Shares total Share | Shares total Share |share
Shares | s Shares | s holdi
of the | Pledg ofthe | Pledg |ng
Comp |ed/ Comp |ed/ durin
any encum. any encum | 9
bered bered | the
to to year
total total
- shares shares
7 | The Tata Power 1 0% - 1 0% - . -
Company Limited
and
Mr. Ramesh
Subramanyam
8 | The Tata Power 0 0% | - 1 0% - -
Company Limited '
and
Mr. Jeraz E
Mahernosh ~
9 | The Tata Power 0 0% - 1 0% -
Company Limited
and
‘Mr. Pramod Singh

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify. if there is no change}

| Sl | Name Shareholding at | Date | Reason | Increase/{De | Cumulative
. | Shareholder the beginning crease) in Shareholding
No of the year Shareholding | during the year
‘ No. of | % of No. o| % of No. of - | % of total
shares| total sharg total | shares |shares of
shares |'s shares | the
of the of the Company
Compa Comp
ny | any :
1 | The Tata Power | 15,99 100% No . - -1 15,999, 100%
Company 9,994 change 994
Limited
2 | The Tata Power. 1 0% | 318t | Super (1) 0% - -
Company Octo | annuatio
Limited and ber, | nof Mr.
Mr. A S Bapat 2017 AS
Bapat
3 | The Tata Power 1 0% No - - 1 0%
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Increase/(De

Sl | Name Shareholding at | Date | Reason Cumulative
. | Shareholder the beginning crease) in Shareholding
No of the year Shareholding | during the year
No. of | % of No. of % of No. of | % of total
shares| total ‘i share total shares | shares of
shares s shares the
of the of the Company
Compa Comp .
ny any
Company change
Limited and
Mr. H M Mistry .
4 | The Tata Power 1 0% No - - 1 0%
Company change
Limited and
Mr. Sanjay
Dube :
5 | The Tata Power 1 0% | 31st Super (1) 0% - -
Company Octo | annuatio
Limited and ber, | nof Mr.
Mr. Deepak 2017 ; Deepak
Mahendra Mahend
: n ra
6 | The Tata Power 1 0% No - - 1 0%
Company change
Limited and ‘
Mr. Sanjeev
Mehra
7 i The Tata Power 1 0% No - - 1 0%
Company change
Limited and
| Mr. Ramesh
Subramanyam
8 | The Tata Power - -{ 315t | Transfer 1 0% 1 0%
Company Octo
Limited and ber,
Mr. Jeraz E 2017
Mahernosh
9 | The Tata Power - -t 318t | Transfer 1 0% 1 0%
Company Octo : :
Limited and ber,
| Mr. Pramod 2017
Singh :
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(iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than dlrectors promoters and

holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl. | Name of Shareholding at the beginning of { Cumulative Shareholding
No. | Shareholders | the year during the Year
No. of shares % of total -1 No. of shares | % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company

Not Applicable

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at

' Sl. | Name of Date | Reaso | Increase/Decrease | Cumulative
No.| Shareholde| the beginning of n in Shareholding
|- the year Shareholding during the Year
No. of| % of No. of | % of total | No. of % of total
share | total shares | shares of | share| shares of
s shares the S the
of the Company Company
Compan -
y
1 | Mr. 1 0% NA NA 0 0% 1 0%
Sanjeev
Mehra
- | jointly held
with The
Tata
Power.
Company
Limited

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including intérest 6utstandinglaccrued but not due for

payment
: Figures in Z crore
Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
‘ _ deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year '
i) Principal Amount 178.86 - - - 178.86
i) Interest due but hot paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.27 - - 0.27
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Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
Total (i+ii+iii) 179.13 - - 179.13
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
- Addition 1254.81° 190 - 1444.81
- Reduction (1375.9) (190) - {1565.9)
Net Change (121.09) 0 - (121.09)
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year '
i) Principal Amount 57.79 - - 57.79
ii} Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.25 - - 0.25
Total (i+ii+iii) 58.04 58.04

V1. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Figures in ¥ lakhs

SI. | Particulars of Remuneration
no.

Total Amount

1. | Gross salary

income-tax Act, 1961

1961

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sectlon 17(1) of the

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c} Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act,

168.13

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

i

Commission
| - as % of profit

- others, specify...(performance based)

5. | Others, Retirement Benefits

As per policy

“Total (A)

168.13

240.00

Ceiling as per the Act’
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B. Remuneration o other Directors:

Figures in ¥ lakhs

Name of Directors Particulars of Remuneration | Tofal

Sl.
no Amount
Fee for Commiss | Others
attending ion** ,
board / please
committee : specif.
Meetings* y
|. | Independent Directors :
Mr. Seethapathy 4.40 Nil Nil | - 4.40
Chander : :
Mr. N N Misra 4.40 Nil Nil 4.40
Total (A) 8.80| - Nil Nil 8.80
[I. | Other Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. S Ramakrishnan 4.90 ~ Nil Nil 4.90
Mr. Anil Sardana Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Ashok Sethi : Nil Nif Nil Nil
Mr. Ramesh _ Nil ‘ Nil Nil Nil
Subramanyam :
Mr. Arun Srivasiava Nil . Nil Nil Nil
Ms. Anjali Kulkarni . 3.30 Nil Nil 3.30
Total (B) 8.20 Nil Nil 8.20
Total Managerial 17.00 Nil Nil 17.00
Remuneration ' '

None of the NEDs had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personne! Other than Managing D:rector/Manager/
- Whole Time Direcfor -

Figures in ¥ lakhs

Sl

no.

Particulars of Remuneration | | Mr. Amey Naik
- (CFO & C8)

Gross salary ' 44 93
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of '
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961 .

Stock Option - ’ -

Sweat Equity , -

B @ N

Commission “
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Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Amey Naik
no. (CFO & CS)
- as % of profit . '
- others, specify...(performance based)
5. | Others, Retirement Benefits As per policy
Total ' 44.93
VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of | Brief Details of Authority | Appeal
: the Description| Penalty / [RD/ ‘made, if
Companies Punishment/ | NCLT/ any
Act ‘ Compounding | COURT] | (give
_ ' fees imposed Details)
Penalty . : '
Punishment None,

Compounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty 7
Punishment None
Compounding

On Behalf of Board of Directors,

Sd/-

S Ramakrishnan
Chairperson
(DIN: 00005090)

Mumbai, 25" April, 2018
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Chartered Accountanis

CINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Power Trading Company
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Shicet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.”

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directoys is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Coinpanies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with vespect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance iucluding other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for salsguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the {nd AS financial statements that give a teue and Fair view and ave free from material
misslatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, We conducted our andit of the Ind AS Fnancial statements in aceordance with the Standards
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chaitered Accountants of India, as specified under Section
{43(10) of the Act, Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements.and plan and
petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
Fraud or etror. In making those risk assessments, the auditar considers internal financial conirol relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial staternents that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presenfation ofthe Ind AS financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
‘a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

S.R, Ballibol & Co. LLP, a Limilod Lisbilily Partnessilp with LLE Wdentity Ho, AAB-4Z34
Reqi. Offfce 1 22, Camar Skrent, Block '¢*, 3rd Flaor, Kolkata- 100 016
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Opinion

n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the End
AS financial statemnents give the information required by the Act in the manuer so required and give a
true and Fair view in conformily with the accounting principles generafly accepted in India, of the stafe
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, iis
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matier

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2017, includad in these
Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an opinion
on those statemenis on May 3, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

[. As required by the Companies {(Auditor’s report) Ovder, 2016 (“the Order”’) issaed by the Ceniral
Government of India in term$ of sub-section (i 1) uf section 143 of the Act, we give in the Armexure
1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2. As requited by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
lnowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those bools;

(¢) The Balance Shest, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Fncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement af Changes in Equity dealt with by this Repoit are
in agreement with the books of account; '

() Tn our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
~.2015, as amended; :

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the divectors as on March 31, 2018, and taken
* on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018,
from being appoiited as 4 director in terms of section 164 {2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repocting of the '
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report; '

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according o the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses, ‘ .
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i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Tnvestor Bducation and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For 5.R., Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chattered Accountants
ICAI I'irm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

I

oy

por Sanjeev Jumar Singhat
Partner '
Membership Number: 095377
Place of Signature:

Date: April 25,2018
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Amnexure | referred to in paragraph I under the heading “Report on ofher legal and regulatory
requirements” of ouy veport of even date

Re: Tata Pawer Trading Company Linsited (‘the Company®}

i,

iil.

i,

vil.

viil,

a) The Company has maintnined proper records showing fult particulars, including yuantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and 0o material
discrepancies were identified on such verification,

¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are 10 immovable
propertics, included in property, plant and eguipment of the company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i}(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accmdmgly, the 1eqm1enmnts under
paragraph 3(ii} of the Ovder are not applicable to the Lompany

Accarding to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has not granted any Ioans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other paﬂies covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(ii#)(a), (b) and {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given fo us, provisions of section 186
of the Companies Aet 2013 in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees,
and securities given have been complied with by the company, In our opinion and acco;ding to the
information and explanations given to us, there are no loans given in respect of which provisions of
section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not spscified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services
of the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory <ues including provident fund, etnployees’ state insurance, income-tax, salss-
tax, service tax, doty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, poods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases. ‘

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of pmvidexit fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other stalutory dues were owtstanding, af the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dnes of income tax, sales-tax,
sefvice tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been depasited on
account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the managément, the
Company has not defauited in repayment of loans. The Company did not have loans or borrowings in
respect of financial institutions or government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by term loans for the purposes for which they were raised.
Further, according to the informnation and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

raised any money way of*initial public offer / fggjh?mpu%\hc offer / debt instruments.
‘\\k‘- &
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xi.

xii.

xiii.

xiv.

rY.

XVL

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the irae and fair view of the
financial statenients and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the company or to fraud én the company by the officers and employess of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managetial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

I our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi campany. Therelore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

Agccording to the information and explanations given by the management, fransactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial sigtements, as required by the applicable
agcounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balace
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fulty or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review  and hence, reporting 1equnements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon,

According to the infortmation and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons coniected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations piven Lo us, the provisions of scetion 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

per Sanjeev Kumpr Singhal
Parmer
Membership Number: 095377

Place of Signature:
Date: April 25,2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITGR'S REFORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMTED

" Report on the lnternal Financial Controls wnider Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) :

We have audited the internal finracial controls over financial reporling of Tata Power Trading Company Limited
(“the Company™) as o March 31, 2018 in conjunclion with our audit ol the financial statements of’ the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Mmragement’s Responsibllity for futernal Financial Contrals

The Cormpany’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internad financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of Iniérnal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Inslitute of Charlered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenanee of adequate intérnal financial conirols that were opdrating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and etficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policics, the
safeguarcling of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness ol the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Acl, 2013.

Auditor’s Respousibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financlal controls over fimaneial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted owr audit in aceprdance with the
Ciuidance Note on Audit of Inlermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Audiling as specified nader scction 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of intcrnal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. ‘Those
Standdrds and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requiremtents and plan and pertorm the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whelher adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference (o these financial statements was establishet! and maintained and if such conlrols operated elfectively
in aft material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about-the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statéments and their operatitg effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reparting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material seakness exists, and testing and evalualing the design and operafing effectiveness of internal control
based on the asscssed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessiment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dug to frand or ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suFficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor our audit
opinian on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial sialements,

Meaning of Infernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financiat
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with refevence to thest Financial statements Is a
* process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial stalements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reforting with reference to these linancial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and faitly veftect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assuranee that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepavation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that reccipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance witll authorisatiens of management and divectors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of

et

the compiny's assets that could have a material effest/Sir hbtinancial statements,
pany Teat/D [HBy:
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Chartered Accolntants

Inherent Limiations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference ¢o these
Fiuancial Statements

Recause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 1o these
financial stalermenis, including the possibitity of colusion or improper management overricde of controls, material
missiatements tue to error or fraud may oteur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

- internal financial controls over financtal reporting with refercnce to these financial statements to fulure periods
are subject to the visk that the internal Financial coutrel over financial reporting with reference o these fnancisl
slatements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comphianee with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. ‘

Cpinion

In ow opinion, the Company has, is all material respects, adequate internal financial contrels over financial
reporting with reference to these financial stalerents and such internal financiad controls over finanelal reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effeclively as at March 3 1, 2018, based on the internal
control over {inancial reporling criteria cstablished by the Company considering the essential componenis of
internal conlrel stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Conlrols Over Financial Reporling
issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Tndia.

TFor S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLY
Charlered Accountants
TCAI Firm Registration Number; 30 100313/E300003
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per Sa_njcevl}u{umr Singlial

Partner

Membership Mumber: 095377
Place of Signature:

Date: April 25, 2018
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Tadw Powver Teading Conpany Limdted

Balnuce sheet as nt 315t March, 2018

As at Asat
Motes 35t Marel, 2018 " 31st Mprel, 2017
¥ Lalhg < Lalths
ASSETS
Non-cuvrent Asseis
{8) Propecly, plant and equipment 4 ' 5,008.99 2,839.48
{b) Capilal Work-in-Progress B 2,391.39
(o) Intangihie Assels 5 209.37 30741
() Fimancial Assels
(i} Dvesiments G - 387.60
(e) Nou-current Tax Assets (Nel) 9 21922 9220
{f) . Other Man-curient Assels 10 8.40 230,55
Total Non-current Assets 5,528.98 6,448.03
Current Assels
() Tinancial Assels
(i) Trade Receivables 7 14,749,532 48,703.13
(i) Unbilled Revenue 19,523.71 11,344,15
(iti) Cash and cash Fqgtivalents 11 4.93 810.56,
{iv) Bank Balanees ollier than (it} above 11 94,3 -
(¥) Other finaneial assels 8 17,977.58 1,514.17
{b) {(Xher Curtend Assets 10 10.38] 149.3%
- Total Current Assets 52,357.28 62,521,410
TOTAL ASSETS 57,886.26 04,969.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ity
(a) Equily Share Capital 12 +1,600.00 1,60€.00
(b} Other Equity i3 £4.0039.89) 14,192,66
‘Fotal Equity 15,639.89 15,792.66|
LIABILITIES
Non-current Linhifities
(a) Finaneial Liabifities
{i) Borowings 14 3,143.506 3,403,98
(b) Provisions 16 246.001 2252t
(¢} Dolerred Tax Linbilities (Net) 17 ' $23.01 51144
Total Mow-current Liabilities 4.312,57 4,140,643
Current Linbilities
() Financiul Linbilities
(iy Borrowings 19 2,375.05 14,233,37
(i{) Trade Payabics 20 . 23,141.31 32,559.43
(iiiy Other Financial Liabilities i5 87561 1,664,29
{b) Provisions 16 1,213.55 8.56
{c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 87.06 -
{d) Other Curvent Linbilitics 13 1024122 530.49
Tolad Current Linbilities 37,933.80 49,036.14
TOTAL EQUETY AND LIABILITIES 57,886.26 68,969,463

© The aceompanying notes ave an lntegend part of the fnancial statements

As per our réport of even dute

TFor 8.R.Batlibei & Ce, LLP

Chartered Actountants

Tirm Regisiration No: 3010038 / 300003

Mesnbership’ No. 95377

Pluce: New Delhi
Drate: 25th Aprif, 2018
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For and on behalf of {he Board of Divectors \f\f

AKLQ;—‘ I\‘\’&ZS ) /

8. Rawnlwishunn Sanjeey Mehra
Chainnan Managiizg Direclor

Amey Naik .
Chief Finaneial Ofticer & Company Sceretery

Place: Noida
Date: 25th April, 2018




Tata Power Frading Company Limiied
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 3ist Mareh, 2018

Tor Yenr ended For Year ended
Motes 31ist Mareh, 2018 31 Warch, 2017
{ Laldis . ¥ Lukhs
1 Revenue from Operations ‘ 21 3,69,141.81 - 4,60,508.51
I Gther Iucome 22 51.96 ) 147,28
1} TotalIncome - ’ 3,69,193.67 4.60,655.79
IV Expenses . - .
(a)  Cost of Power Puschased (refer note 28) : 3,68,143.46 4,62,330.80
I.ess; Cash discount earned ‘ . 6,000.13 6,846.67
3,62,0583,33 4,55,444.13
{by Compensation Bxpense (Net) ) : - 373.23] . (62.82)
() Dinployes Benclits Expense * 23 - 1,100.99 - 919.52
{d) Finance Costs : 24 1,013.05 " 1,803.56
{¢)  Depreciation axd Amortisation Expenses 4 &5 456.86 ¢ 31265
(0 Ofler Expenses 23 1,769.38 1,282.66
Toinl Expenses 3,66,766.84 4,89, 139,70
Y Profit Before Tux - 2,427.03] 916,09
VI Tax Expense :
Ciurent Tax - 26 601.50 ) ' 224.94
Tax for earlier years 26 (66.66) 16.05
Defarred Tax ‘ 26 363.02 156.77
927.86 39776
VI Profit for the perind e _1499.17 518.33
VIIT Other Comprehiensive fncome
A Addf{fess)
! (i) Items that will not be rectassitied to profit and loss
() Remeasurement of the Defined Beneilt Plans 53.58 - (7.48)
(L) Tax expense : (18.54) 259
Total Other Conprehensive Income 35.04 (4.89)
1X Total Comprehensive tncome for the period (VII4- Vill) 1,534.21 £13.44
¥ Earnings Fer Equity Share (Face Value ¥ 10/~ Per Share) ’
Basic (%) - 27 937 ’ 324
Diluted (%} . 27 937 . 324
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even dale
Taor S.R.Batlibui & Co, LLP Tor and on behalf of the Board of THrectors
Chartered Accountants :
Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005 . (\f\‘\r/
Y | <. R
per Sanjeev Kymar Singhal 8. Ramakrishuan Sanjeev Mehira
Partnee o Chairman Managing Director
Membership Mo. 95377 “";%Tf‘“\ : N )
f""""\E’( \‘r#?:
i Y .
g (N
e ANy Naik
‘% ey Pr .Chief Financial Officer & Cotmpany Secretary
: Ty
ey vhE :
Place; Now Dathi O : Place: Noida

Date: 251k April, 2018 : Tale: 25th April, 2018




Tata Pewer Frading Company Limited

Statement of cash flows for the pertod eaded 315t Mureh , 2018

Year Ended Yenr Ended
31st Mareh, 2018 31st Mavch,2017
< Laldg ¥ Lalihs
, A, Cash flow from eperating netivitkes .
Profil before lax 2,427.03 716.09
Dapreciaiion and ameriisation expense of property, plant & equipment ~ 456.86 312.65
_ Interesl income (330 (17.40)
Gain grising on financial assois designated as at FVEPL - (21.75)
Decerease it fair valuation of investment 387.00 E
Tinance cost ' 1,0{3.05 1,803.56
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plaut snd 2guipment .~ ’ 097 {0.01)
Gain on safe of cinrent invesimeits (48.66) (108.13)
Amortization of leaschotd fand D40/ T04d0
Liahility no longer reqeired writlen back {411.35) (1.98)
Frovision for doubiful debts and advances (Net} {130.38) {33.25)
) 3,691.62 2,850,18
Decrease in trade receivables . 34 042,72 (8,487.24
Decrease/(increase) in othes cument assets : , ’ 135.01 (125.53)
{Increase)fdecrease in olher curcent {financial assets _ (24,601.34) 3,203.85
3ecrease in trade payables {9,046.77) {14,540.86)
Inesease(decrease) on elher current linbilities 9,710.73 (175.22)
Detrease in other current financial fiabilities (189.23) (136,95)
Increase in provisions 73.81. 25.95
10,038.93 3,738.48
Cash generpied from eperations . ’ 13,730.55 11,588,606
Tucome taxes paid . (574,19 {276.04)
MNet eash flow from aperailng activities 13,155.76 11,312.62
B, Cogh fow from fnvesting activities
Paymeats. for property, plant and equipment (41043) (318.77),
Proceeds Irom disposal ol property, plant aud cquipment 202 110
Fiter company deposits piven . (£2,000.00 -
Enter company deposils eeceived 2,000.00 -
Purchuse of carrent investments : (85,650.00) {1,91,005.00)
Proceeds from sale of current invesimants 85,698.66 1,91,201,3%
Inlerest incame received on Fixed deposits - 17.49)
Met cash flow used in investing activities (359.75) (193.88)
C.  Cash flow from {inancing activities .
Proceeds from borrowings 1,44 48137 1,68,784 42
Repaynsent of borrowings {1,58.219.37 (1,66,981.40)
Finance cosls paid (1,015.32) (1,796.12)
Dividends paid . {4640.00) (480,00}
Dividend distribution tax paid (81.43) (97.72)
Finance income recgived ) 1.78 -
Net cash flow vsed in financiug activities ) . {15,932.97) {57142}
Met (deereaselincrease in cash and cash equivalenls (3,136.96) 10,547.32
Casle nnd cash equivalents as at Ist April, 2017 . 166,84 _{9,780.48)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st Marcl, 2018 (Refer note 10) (2,370.12) ., T66.84

The accompanying notes are an integrad pavt of $he financind sinfenents

As per our repord of everi dale Tar and on behalf of the Board of Divectors

_ For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLY

Tirm Registration No: 301003E [ £300005 )

Chartered Accountants IQ . (\//
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et Sanjeev Idytany Singhnl ) | S, Ramplarishnan Sanjeev Melira’
Pariner Chairman Managing Direcfor
Membership Ho. 95377 .
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Chigl Finaucial Officer & Company Secretary

Place: Moida -
Date: 25th April, 2018

Place: New Dalhi
Date: 25th April, 2018




Tatu Power Trading Company Limited

~ Statement of changes in equity Tor the period ended 3 st Mareh, 2018

A, BEguity Share Capital
] ¥ Lakhs

Mo, of Sharves Amonut
Batuuee as at Ist Aprll, 2016 1,60,00,000 1,600
Fssue of Bquity Shares during the period - -
Bnlance as at 3Est March, 2017 . 1,60,60,000 1,600 :
Issue of Equity Shares during the year - - .
Balanee as al 315t Marely, 2018 1,60,00,600 1,600
B, Other Equily F Lahhs

Reserves and Surplus
General Reserve |Securities Premimm Retatued . Deemed eapital
Deseription Reserve Earniugs cordribition Fatnl
from holding
COMRPANY,

Batnee as at Is1 April, 2056 1,355.00 2,089.50 10,804.14 - 14,248.64
Adld: Issue of financial Guarantee by holding company - - - 330 830
Profil for the year - - 51833 - 51833
Other Conipreliensive come/(Bxpense) for the year {Nel
ol Tat) - - {4.89) ) - - (4.89)
Total Comprehiensive licome - 513.44 8.30 521714
Dividerd paid (including tax on dividend) . - - 57192 5 57712
Balahee as at 3kst Mareh, 2017 1,355.00 2,089.50 10,739.86] 8.30 14,192.66
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 1,355,00 2,089.50 10,739.86 830 14,192.65
Profit for the year . . - - 1,499.17 - [,49%.47
Othf:r Comgrelensive income/{Expense) for the year (Nel | A 15.04 A 1504
of Tax)
Total Comiprehensive Income - - 1,534.21 1,534.21
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) - - C1,400.00 Lo 1,400.00
Tax on Dividend ' - - 286.98 - 286.98
Rajance as at 31st Mareh, 2018 1,355,00 2,089,50 10,587.09 8,30 14,039.89

The necompanying notes ave an integral pard of the financial statements

As por our repott of even date

For S.00Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Fitm Registration Mo: 301003E / E300005

T
per Sanjeey I;Zm 1 Sinphal
Partuer J

Membership Mo, 95377

Place; New Delhi
Date: 25th April, 2018
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Sunjee; Melira
Managing Director
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Antey Naik
Chief Finanoial Officer & Company Secretary

Pluce: Noida
Date: 25th April, 2018
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Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes of the finnncial statements

General inforumtiml‘

Tata Power Trading (,ompany Limited is e wholly owned subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited. The Compauy
is primarily engaged in the business of irading ol electricity across the country. Central Blectricity Regalatory Commission
{CERC) has granted Category “I” certificate to the Company for purposes of power trading, which allows the Company
{0 trade power uaits without any quanijtative restrictions. The Company sources power from different public and private

- sectors utilities and supplies {o various conswress being public aad private sectors pover utilitics, The Company Is a public
limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office of the Company is (Jamac Receiving
station, 34, Sant Tukaram Road, Caroac Bunder, Mumbat - 400009, India,

The financial statements were anthorized fov issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on April 23, 2018,

2. Bignificant acconnting policies:

)

c)

Statement of compliance

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {(Ind AS) as notified under
the companies (Indian Accounting Standavds) Rules, 2015 (as amended from fime to time) read with section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Basis of preparation and preseutation:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assels measurcd at Tair
value {refer accounling policy regarding financial instruments).

Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial statemenls it conformity with the vecognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires the management of the Compaity to make estimates and asswnptions that affect the reported. balances of assets
and lisbilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabiiities as at the date of the financial statements aud the reported
amounis of income and cxpense for the periods presented,

Estimates and underlying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the periad in which the cstimates are revised and future periods are affeeted.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty al {he date of the [inancial statements, which may cause a malerial adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and Habilitics within the next financial year, is inrespect of vafuation of deftrrod tax assets,
estimation of onerous confract provision related to Dagachhu Project, impaivment of investment, and provigion for
employee benefits, current and deferved tax, useful life of property , plant & equipment,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the amount of revemue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the econoniic benefits will
flow to the Company and specilic eriteria have been met for each of the Corpany’s activities as described below. Revenue
is measwred at the fair value of the consideration réeeived or receivable.

i Revenue from sale of power Is accounted for based on rales agreed with the customers,

ii. For sale of power under banking arrangements onty margly earned on the transactions is accounted for a3 revenue.

itk Revenue in the natute of advmoly services rendered towards finalisation of power pu;chase agreements, load
management ete. is recognised as determined under the tetms of respective agieements

iv. Detayed payment chavpes for power supply on grounds of prudence are 1ecﬂgm~aed when tecovery is virtually
cettain,

v.  Compensation recoverable from custemers/suppliers for default in purchasefsale of power is accrued as determined
under the terms of respeciive apreements abd acknowledged by customers/suppliers,
T .
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Tata Power Tvading Company Limited
Notes of the financial statements

v Dividend income ffom investments is recognised when the shargholder's 1ight to receive payment has bean
established {provided that it is probable that the econiomic benefits will fiow to te Company and the amout of
income can be measured reliably). ’

vil. Interesl income from a findncial asset is recognised when it is probuble that the ¢conomic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be mensured veliably. Tnterest income s accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and 2t the effective interest vafe applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated fulure cash receipls tlwongh the expected life of the financial assel to that asset’s net carrylng
amounl on initial reeognition,

Leasing

Fhe determination of whether an mrangement is (or ontains) a loass is based on the substance of the arrangement ut the
inception of the fease. The arangament is, or contains, a lease if tullilment of the arranpement is dependent on the use of
a specific assel or asgets and the avrangement conveys a right to usc the asset-or assets, even T that vight is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement,

The Company ns lessor

Leases In which the company does not teansfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified
as aperating leases, Rental income fiom operating leuse is recognised ona straight-line basis over the lerm of the relevant
lease. Where the rentols are structured solely to increase in fine with expected general inflation o compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such increascs are recogiised ia the year In which -such benefits acorue,
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as.an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

initlal diréct costs imeurred in negoliating and arcanging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recogniscd over the tease lerm on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rentals are vecognised as revenue
in the poriod in which they are cartied.

Leases are classificd as finance leases when substantially ali of the risks and rewards ol ownership transfer from the
company to the lessee. Amounts due trom lessces under {inance feases are recorded a5 veceivables at the Company’s net
investitent in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so s to reflecl a constant periodic tate of,
retur on the net investment outstanding in respecl of the lease.

The Company as kessee

A lease is classified at the inception dale as a financs lease or an aperating lesse, A lease that transfers substantially afl the
risks and rewards incidental to ownexship to the compary is classified as a finance lease,

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value ol the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments arc apportioned between finance chasges
and seduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a.constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Firiance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are diveotly atiributable to
qualifying assels, in which case they are capitalized in aceordance with the company’s general policy on the borrowing
costs (Sec note 2,1.g). Conlingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the petiods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, Howsver, if there is no reasonable cerlainty that the company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the lease term. ) . o

Rénial expense from operating leases s gencrally recognised on a straight-line basis over the texm of the relevant lease.
Whers the rentals are structured solely Lo increase in line with expected general inflation lo compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationacy cost increases, such Increases arc recognised in the year in which such benefits accruc, Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the pertod in which they ave incurred.

In the event that lcase incentives are received to enter into operating [eases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggrogate benelit of incentives is recognised as a redustion of rental expense on a sivaight-FHine basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time patiern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed, ‘
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Tata Power Trading Company Limited
MNofey of the financial statementy

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Iadian rupee (RS.), These Finaneial Statéments are presented in lndian rupees,

In preparing the Gnancial staterients of the Conipany, transactions in crurencies other than 1he entity's fanctional cutréncy
{loreign currencies) are recognised at the gates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Al the end of cach
reporiing perlod, menetaty items denominated in foreign currencies are retranstated at the rates prevailing at (hat dale,

Exchiange differences on monctary items e recoghised in profit or loss In the peviod in which they avise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating lo assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cosl of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings. Teansaction gaits or losses realized upon seltlement of foreign curtency (ransaclions are Included in

determining net profit/loss for the period in which the raussction is setlfed.

Borrowing cests

Borrowing costs divectly attvibuiable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets, which are asscts
that ncocssarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended usc or sale, are added o the cost of those
assets, urlil such time s the assets are substanttally ready for their intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss i the period in which they are incuired.

Employee henefits

©) Retivement henefit costs and termination benofits

a) Defined contribution plans

Payment‘; to defined contribution retirement benelit plans are reco gniscd as an expense when employces have rendered
service entitling than to the contributions.

b} Defined henefiis plans
Fhe cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unil credit mothod.

Remeasurenients, comprising of actuarial gains and fosses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the refurn on plan assels (excluding amounts included in nel
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
ot credit to vetained eamnings through OC! in the pericd in whick ihey ocour, Remeasurerients are not reclassified o
profit or tess in subsequent periods, Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earbier of
o The dale of the plan amendment or curtailment, and ‘
o The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
o Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an eXpense in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss:
o Service cosls comprising cutrent setvice cosls, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non.
routing settlements; and
o Net interest expense or income.

A liability for a termination benefit s recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefits and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

i} Short-term and other lougute} m employee benefits

Ahainhty is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salavies, atnual ]emfc and sick leave
in the period the related service is fetidered af the undiscounted amount of the benefits expested to be paid in exchangs
for that service.

Liabilities fecogniscd in tespect of short-lerm employec benehts are measured at lhe undiscounted amount of the
benefits expested to be paid in chchange,,fm“ %‘iélatcd service.
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Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Neotes of the financial stntements

Tiabililies recognised in respect of other long-levm employee benelits arc measured at the present valne of the estimated
future cash outflows expocted (o be made by the Company in vespect of services provided by employees up to the
peporting date:

Taxation

[ncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax cu reently payable and deferred tax.

i} Current {ax

~——

Curtent income {ax asscts and liabilities ave measured at the amount expected (o be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorifies. The tax rates and tay faws used lo compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacled, ab the reporting date and gencrates taxable income, :

Curient incotne tax relating to ilens recognised outside profit or Joss is recognised owside profit or toss (sither i other
comprehensive income o in equity). Current tax iterss ave recognised in coreelation to the underlying transaviion either
in OCT or diicctly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken ju the tax retwns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject.do interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Defervod fax

Defesred tax Is recognised on temporary differences between the careying amownis of assets and linbitities in the
finaneial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Delerred tax Habilities
are pererally recognised for all taxeble temporary differences. Deferred tax assels ave gencrally recognised for all
deductible lemporary differences to the cxtent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible tomporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred lax assets and liabilities are nol recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and labilities
in a1 ransaction that afccts neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting peried and reduced to the oxtent
that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available Lo allow all or part of the assel lo be
recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets arc re-assessed at sach reposting date and ave recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 1ax asset to be recovered, ‘

Defeered tax liahiliies and assets sre measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
fiability is setiled or the assel realized, based on'fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacied or substantively cnacted
by the end of the reporting period. : ’

Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (gither in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Doferred tax items are recognised in corvelation fo the underlying transaction
gither in OCT or divectly in equity. ‘ .

The measwrement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of ils asseis
and [abilitics. : :

Deferred lax assets and labilitics are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same laxation suthority and
the relevant eatity intends to seitlé its current tax assels and liabilities on a net basis. '

Deferred tax assols include Mintmum Abternative Téx (MAT) paid In accardance with the tax laws in India, which is
likely to give futwe economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against fulure income tax Hability.

" Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset inthe balance shect whien the asset can be measuved reliably and

it is probable that the future econonic benefit associated witli the asset will be realised.

e ard
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Properiy, piant aud equipment

Prapesty, plaat and equipment are stated io the hatance sheel al cost less accumulajed depreviation and accumulated
impairment losses, Cost inciudes purchase price (Net off trade discount & rebates) and any directly ativibutuble cost of
bringing tlic asset to its working condition for its intended usc and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitafised in
accordance with the Company’s accounting poticy. ’

Praperties in the course of consiruction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried al cost, less any
recognised impaiement loss, Cost includes professional foes and, for qualifying ossets, borvowing cosls capitalised in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such propertics are classified to the appropriate categories of properly,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for Imended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as olher
property assets, commences when the agsots are available for thelr intended use,

Depreciation is recognised so as to write ofF the cosl of assets (other than properties under construction) fess their residual
values over their useful lves, using the straight-line method. The estimated vsefirt lives, residual values and dopresiation
method are reviewed al lhe end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estinile accounied for on a
prospeclive basis, ) :

Depreciation oo property, plant and equipment bas been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful fife
prescribed in Schedule 11 le the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assels whose estimated usatul life
is assessed baged on technical advice, taking info account the regulatory prescribed rates, nature of the assct, the estimated
usage ol the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, ete,

Plant and Equipment - Wind Mill: 235 years (Initial 10 years at 6% based on GERC, thereailer 2%)
Plant and Equipment - Solar Plant: 15 years
Motor Vehicles: 5 yoars

An item of properiy, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal.or when no future cconomic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of propetty,
plant and equipment is deterinined as the difference between the sales proceeds dud the earrying amount of the asset asd
is recognised in profit or loss,

The restdual velues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. .

Intangible assets:
i) Intangible asseis acquired separately

Intangible assels with fnite usefud lives that are acquived sepavately ave carried al cost less accumulated amodisation
and acoumulated impairment logses, Amortisation is recognised on 4 straight-line basis over thelr estimated usetul lives.
The estimated useful 11fe and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basts, Intungible assels with indefinite useful lives that
are acqulred separately arc carried at cost less accunmlated impairment Josses.

if) Derecognitionr of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no futive economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.

Gaing or losses arising from dérecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
- proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset, and aro recognised in profit or loss whien the asset is derecognised.
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iif) Usefud Hives of intangible assets
Tistimated usefd lives of the intangible assets ave as tollows:
Software license: 5 yews
Impaisnient rjftangihlc and intangible assets other than goodyill

The Company assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assel may be impatred. Tf any
indication cxists, or when dnnual impairment testing for an assel fs required, the Company eatimates the assel’s recoverable
snount. an asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s ot Cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair vakic Jess cosls of
disposal and its‘value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does nol pencrate
Cash inflows Mhat ave largely independent of those from other asséls or group of asscts.

When the varrying amount of an asset or COU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

Ih assessing value in use, the estimated {ubwe Cash Tlows are discounted (o their present value using a pre-tax digcount
rate that reflects cursent market assessments of the fime valuc.of money and the risks specific to Lhe asset, in determining
faiv vakue less costs of disposal, recent market bansactions are taken into account. 1FNo such transactions can be identitied,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These caloulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share Prices
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Comypiany bases its impairment catoulation on detaited budgets and forecast caloulations, which are prepared separalely
for each of the Company’s CGUS to which the Individual assets are allocated. These budgeis and forecast culculations
gencrally cover a peviod of five years. For jonger periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
future Cash fows after the Ak year to estinate Cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most. recent
budgelsfforecasts, the Company cxtrapalates Cash flow projections in the budget using a stcady or declining prowth rate
for subsequent ycars, uniess an increasing rate can be justified, In any case, this growth rate does not excesd the long-(erm
avernge growth rate for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing oporations, including tmpairment on nventories, are recogmised in the staterent of profit
and loss, excepl for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCL For such properties, the
fmpairment is recognised in OCT up to the amount of iy previous revaluation-surphis, For assets excluding goodwill, an
assessment, s made al each veporting: date to determine whether theie is an Indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer éxist or have decreased. Ifsuch indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU s
recoverable amount, A previously recognised impaitment loss js reversed only il there has been a change in the
assuniptions used to dotermine the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not excoed its recoverable amound, nor exceed the catrying amouat
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recogaised. : ’

Provisions

provisions are recognised when the Company has a présent obligation (legal or constructive) asa result of a past event, it
is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of ihe consideration required to settle itie présent obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash Hows estimated to settle the present abligation, its carrying amount is the present value ofthose
sash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is materiat}, :

When some or all the economic benefits rejuired to seitle a provision are expected 1o be recovered fom a thivd party, a
receivable is recognised as an gsset if it is virtually cortain {hat reimbursement will bé reveived, and the amount of the
receivable can be measured réliably. .
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Onerous contracts

Present obligations wising under onerous contracts arc recognised and measored as provisions. An onerous contract is
vonsidered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the condracl exceed the economic benefits expected o be received fiom the conlract.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when enlily becomes 2 party to the confractual provistons of the
ingtramenls. .

Iiinancial assets and financial Habilities are initially rizeasured af fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities (other: than financial assets and [inancial fiabitities at
fair valoe through profit or loss) are added to or dedutted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on inilial recognition, Transaction costs divectly attributable to the acquisition of inaneial assels or [inancial
liabilitics at fair vabuc through profit or loss are recogpised immediately in profil or loss,

Finaneial nsseis

All vecognised financial assets are subsequentiy measured in their entirety at cither amorlised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets,

i) Clagsifieation of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following couditions are subscquently measured al amortised cost (except for debt
instruments that are designated as at fair value through profi or loss on initial recognition):

o Theasset is held within a business model whosg objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
Nows; and :

e The contractual toeras of the instrument give rise on speoified dates 1o cash Hows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the prineipal amount oulstanding, .

Debts instruments that ineet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is achicved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial agsets; and

s The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specitied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and inlerest on the principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments in Fair value through Profit or-loss category are measured at fair value with alf changes recognised in
Profit and foss

i) = Effective inferest method

The effective interest miethod is a method of calewlating the amortised cost ofa debt instrament and ofallocating interest
income over the relevand period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or veceived that form an integral past of the effective interest rale, (ransaction

* costs and other promiums or discounts) through the cxpected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the bet carrying amount on initial recognition.

fncomg i% recognised on an effoctive interest basis for financial assets other than those financial assets classificd as at
fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognised in the Statemen{ of profit and Loss sad is included in the
“Other income” line iterm,
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iif) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in cquity instruments are classificd as at TVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial
recogaition Lo presenl subséquent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in cqoity
instratnients which are nol held {or teading.

Debt instruinents that do not meet the amortised cost eriteria or FYTOCE criteria {see abové} are measured at FVTPL,
In addition, debt instrunients that meel the amortised cost eriteria or the FYTOCT eriteria but are designated as at
FYTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A fingncial asset that mects the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that imeet the FYTOCH criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL vpon initial recognition if such desigpation eliminales or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arisc from measuring assets o liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at falr value at the end of ecach reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on remensurement recognised in profit or foss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income!’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL s recogniséd when the Company's right (o receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the ceonomic
benefils associated with the dividend will flow to the enfity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of pael of cost
ofthe investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

iv) Dnpairment of finanelal assets
The Company asacsses at each dats of balance sheel whether a {inancial asset or a Company of financial assels is
_ impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses (o be measured through a loss allowance, ‘The Company recogniscs
lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all {rade reteivables that do not constituté  financing transaction,
For all other financial assets, expected credit fosses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expeeled credit
losses or at an amount equal to the life tine expected credit losses if the eredit risk on the financiad assel has tncreased
significantly since initial recognition,.

v}Derecognition eof financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it {ransfers the Gnancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assot to anothor party,

Ont derecognition of a tinancial assct in its entircty, the difference between the asset’s carrying amound and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

p) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
i) Classitication as debt o equify

Debt and squity instroments issued by Company are classified as cither financial labilitics or as equily m accordance
with the substance of the contractual arranpgements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity insirument.

iy Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual intorest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabitlties. Equity instruments issued by Compeny are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,
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iii) Financial liabilities

Financial Lisbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabikitics are classified as at fair valus through profit ar loss when thie financial liability is held for trading or
it iz designated as al fai value through profit or loss.

A financial lisbility is classitied as held for trading if:
o Tt has been Incurred principally for the puepose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
s on initial recognition i is part of a portfolie of identificd financiat instruments that the  Group manages
togelher and has a recent aclual patiern of short-term profit-taking; or .

o Itis a derivative that is not designaied and efTeclive as a hedging instrument,

Financial fiabilities subsequently measured at amoitised cogt

Financial liabilitics that are not held -for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent aceounting perlods. The carrying amourts of financial Jiabilities that ace subsequently measured
at amortised cost are determined based an the effective interest method. Interest expense that Is not capitafised as parl '
of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' ling item,

The effcclive interest method is a method of caleulating the amontised cost of a fingnclal Habifity and of allacating
interest cxpense over the relevant period. The elfective interest rale is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fuiure
cash payments (including all fees and points patd or received thal form an integral part of the offective inforest rale,
sransaction costs and other premiums or’ discounts)y through the expected life of the financial liability,.or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initinf recognition,

Financial Guarantee contract

A Fnancial guarantes contract is # confract that requires the issuer to make specified payment to retmburse the holder
for a loss il incurs because a specificd debtor. fails to make payments when due in accordance with the teims of 2 debt
instrunent,

Financlal guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at theiv fair values and, if not designated
as at FYTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of lass allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

e ‘The mmount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumuldtive amouat of imcome recognised In
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18, '

Derecognition of financial liabilities

‘The Company derecognises linancial Habilities when, and onty whén, the Group®s obligations are discharged, cancelled
Gr have expied, The difference between the catrying smount of the financial Hability derccognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Cash and eash equivalents

The Company cansiders all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
that are subjest to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the
date of purchase, to he eash cquivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage & demand deposit with bauk. ' .

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are réposted using the indirect misthod, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effeots of transactions of
4 non-¢ash nature, any deferrals or aceruals of past or futwe operating cash recelpts or payments and ltem of income or
exponse associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are-segregated based on the available information.

IR
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5) Earnings per equity share
i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing:

o The profil atributable o ewness of the group
o By the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding dwring the financial  year, adjusted for bonus
element in equity shares issued during the year and exchuding treasury shares.

0 Diluted earnings per share
Diluted sarnings per share adjust the figtres used in the determination of basic earnings per share fo take inlo account:

4 The afict income tax effect of interest and other financing costs ussosinted with difutive potential equily
shares; and ’ . )

b, The weighted average number of zdditional equity shares that would have been oulstanding assuming the
conversion of ail tilutive polenlial equity shares. i : :

) ‘ Operating cycle

Considering the nalure of business activitics, the operating eycle has been assumed (o have dwation of 12 months.
Accordingly, all assets and fiabilities have been classified as currenl or noncwrent as per the Group’s operating cyole
and other criteria set ot in Tnd AS | “Presentation of Finaneial Stalements® and Schedule IH to the Companies Act,
2013.

w)  Contingent linbilities

Contingent liabilities ave disclosed in the financial statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibilily of an
outflow of vesources embodying economie bencfit is remote, ’

Standprds issued but nof yei effective
a) IND AS [15 - Revenue from Contracts witl Cnstomers

In March 2018, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs had notified Ind AS 115 {Revenue lrom Contracts with Customers) which
would be applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after | April 2018.This Standard establishes the principles that
an entity shall apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amouat, timing and
nncettainty of tevenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Company is evaluating the requirements
of the standard and its impact on its {inancials,

)] Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unvealised Losses

'The ainendments clarify that an entily needs to consider whether tax law resricts the soutces of taxable profits against which
it may make deductions on the reversal of that dedustible temporary ditference. Furthermore, the amendments provide
gaidance on how an entity shoyld deterarine future taxable profits and explain the civoumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for move than their carrying amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change
in the opening equity of the earliest comparative perlod may be recognised in opening retained earnings (ot in anothey
camponent of cquiiy, as appropriate), without alocating the changs botween opening retained earnings and other components
of equity. Entlties applying this reliof must disolose that fact.

These _amehdments are offective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 April 2018, These amendments are nof expeoted
to have any impact on the company as the compary has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope
of the amendments.
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c) Transfors of Investmont Property — Amemdmeits to Ind AS 40 -

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under constriction or development into,
or oul of investment property. The atnendsients state that a change in use ocours when the property meets, or ceases fo meet,
the definitlon of investient property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intenfions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of & change in use. '

Lntitics should apply (he amendmenls prospectively 1o changes in use that oceur on or after ihie beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity First applics the amendments, An entity should reassess the classification of property
held at that date and, if applicable, reslassify property to reflect the conditions thal cxist at that date. Retrospective application
in accordance with Ind A% § is only permitted if it is possibie withoul the use of bindsight.

‘The amendments are elfective for anmal periods beginning on-or afer ¢ April 2018. The Company will apply amendments
when they become effective. However, since there are no investment praperties, the Conipany does not cxpuct any effect on
its financial statements,

d) Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Citrrency Transaciions and Advance Consideration

“The Appendix clarifies that, in determining ihe spot exchange rate to nse on initial recognitton of the refated assel, exponsc
ar income (or part of if) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liabilily refating to advance
considdration, the dale of the trausaction is the date on which an entity initiatly recognises the fon-monetacy asget or non-

* monotary liability arising fiom the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
enfity intust determine the transaction dale for each payment o receipl of advance consideration,

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fufly retrospective basis. Aliernatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively (o all assets, expenses and incomie in its scope that are inftially recognised on or after:

(i The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applics the Appendix, or

{ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information {n the financial statemenis of the
reporting period in which the entity first applics the Appmdxx

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or alter 1 April 2018, However, since the (,ompauys currsnt
practice is in tine with the Interpretation, the Company does not expeot any effect on its linancial slatements,

e) Critleal accounting judgement & estimates

in the application of the Company's accounting policies, the directors of the Company are required to make judgenieits,
estimates and assuniptions about the carrying ameunts of assets and labilitles that are not readily apparent from othor
sousces. The estimates and associated assumptions ave based on historical experience and other factors thal are considercd
to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumplions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisious to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is rovised if the rovision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and fisture periods if the revision aifests both current and fidure periods. Detailed information about each of these
estimates and jud gements is included in relevani notes togcthel with information about the bdms ot cafculation for each
aﬁ'ect(.d line itert in the financial statements.
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The arcas involving critical cstimates-are;

Nstimation of defined henefit obligation- Note 2{(h)

“The cosl oFthe defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-cinployment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity

obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actiiarial valuation involves making various assumyptions thal may
differ from sclual developments in the future. These include the determivation of the tiscount rate, Mture salary increases
and mortality rates, Due to the esmplexities involved in the valuation and its long-terin nature, a defined benefil obligation
is highly sensitive lo changes in these assumptlons. All agsumplions are reviewed at each reporting daie.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. Tn delermining the appropriate discount rate for plags operated in
India, the management considars he interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of this
post-emsployment benefit obligation '

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables

Fair Value of Investment .

During the yenr company has evaluated the fair value of its investinont in Tata Ceramics Limited based on [air valuation
condueted by an independent expert {Also vefer notc 6 and note 31)

Estimation of Onerous Contract : )
The Company has a take-vi-pay contract with Dagachhu Hydro Power Corporstion Limited (DHPC) for a periad of 25
years (upfo March, 2040} for purchase of power from 126 MW run of the river hydro plant with a guavanteed base rate
which is csoatable 2% evory calendar year, During the year, the Company incurred a loss as the power was sold at a rate
lower than the guarantecd base rale, The lower rate realisation was on account of suppressed power market prices during
the year, limited necess lo-poser market for power from ontside the cotntry, corridoi constraint resulling in increase in
ransmission charges, ete. The Management has asscssed fhe profitability over lhe contract period based on the price
estimales shared by third party expertupto FY 2040, The prices have been forecasted by thivd expert using statistical lools
and models. Based on aséessment cartied out, Management is of the opinion that the contract would be profitable over a
period of time and ne provision needs to be made for onerous confract, The policy for the provision for onerous contracts

has heen explained under note 2(m)(i),

iv., Useful life of pmperfy , plant and equipment

As desoribed in note 2 above, the company reviows the estimated usefil lives of property plant and equipment at end of
cach annual reporting period.
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4, Property, Pland and Equipment ¥ Lakhs
Pland and Furniture and Clfice - . ,
Lguipnicnt Fixfures Tagtipmignt Mbotor Vehicles Totnd

Cost

Balance as at st April, 2017 3,271.82 29 (2333 15.27 3,313.33

Additions 2,603.22 GA7 - 10.64 2,614.33

Disposals 15.45 .08 15.50 - 31.03

Batance as nd st Mareh, 2018 5,859.59 3310 7.83 25,91 3.896.63

Accnmulnted depreciation

Balunce as at st April, 2017 439,931 | 110 19.07 3,75 473.85

Depraeiation Expense 354.54 .30 0.80 319 358,43

1isposal of Assets 13.26 0.05 14.73 - 28.04

Ralanee as nt 31st Miareh, 2018 18121 1.35 4,14 15,94 804.64

Ned earvying amount -

As ni 31sf Mareh, 2018 5,076.38 1.95 2,49 8.97 5,691,99

As at 3lst March, 2017 2,031,489 L& 4.26 1.52 2,839,483

¥ Lakths

f’lm!t and l'u!‘f!lt[ll‘c and ‘ O.mcc Motar Vehicles ‘Tatal
Equipment Fixtures Lquipment

Cost o

Balnuce as at [st Apil, 2016 3,263,20 291 25,34 15271 . 3,305.72

Additions £3.08 - 1.62) E 14.70

Disposals 3.46 - 3.63 - 7.09

Balance as at 31st Mareh, 2017 3,271.82 291 23.33 15,27 3,313.33

Accumnalated depreciation

Balance as at 1st April, 2016 23720 0.71 21,34 13,75 273,08

Pepreciation Lixpense 205.28 0.33 .86 - 20647

Disposal of Assets 2.55 - 3.15 : - 5.70

Balance as at 3186 Muveh, 2037 439.93 1,10 19.67) - 1375 473.85

Net carrylng amount

As at 31st March, 2017 2,831,589 1.81 4.26 1.52 2,839.48

As at 313t Mareh, 2016 3,025.00 214 3.98 1.52 3,032,604

Plant aud equipment with a camying amouat of Rs. 5062.27 Iakhs (as at 31st March, 2017 - Bs. 2,817.16 lakhs) have been pledged to secure borowings

of the Company (sec note 14).




%, Othey intangible nssefs

Tats Power Trading Company Limited

Notes to the financiat stateinents

As at 31st Warch, 2016

& Lakhs
Computer software Total
Cost
Balance as at st Apill, 2057 735,50 735.50
Additions - -
Disposal - -
Balance as ot 3ist Mavch, 2018 735.50 735,50
Accumulaed amortisation and impaivment
Balauee as at Ist April, 2017 428.09 428,00
Amorlisation ¢xpense 98.04] 98.04
Disposat . .
Balance ns nt 3kst Maveh, 2018 526,13 526,13
Mot Block
As af 31st Mavel, 2018 2937 209,37
As at 31st Mareh, 2017 307.41 37418
& Lalhs
Computer sofbware Total
Cost
Balance as af 1st Apyil, 2016 735.50 735.50
Balance as nd 3151 Mareh, 2017 735,50 738,50
Acewmnulated amortisation and impairment
‘TRalanee as at kst April, 2016 32181 32191
Amortisation expense 136,18 106.18
Balance as at 31st Mareh, 2017 428.09 428,89
Net Blocle
As at 31sf March, 2017 30741 307.41
413.59 413,59

The Company holds intangible assels comprising SAP licences for the ERP system implemented in the Company,

The carrying amaount of the assets will be fully amotised over & period of $ yeats from the date of acquisition.




6. Non-curvent Investnicuts

T'nta Pawer Trading Company Linited
Naotes to 1he Fnanctal statentents

Asad As at Asat As ut
31st Moveh, 2008 | 3Fst Maveh, 2007|315t March, 2018 3ist Maredh, 2017
Numbers| - Nusthers Fhalths ¥ Lalhs
Investments carried at fub value
Uncguoted Tnvestments {all fully paid)
#)  Inveshuents in Prefereace instuments at FVTPL-Tata ‘
ceramtics Linnted 3,400,000 3.00,000 387.00 387.00
T.ess: Pair value chinges- (3187.00) .
~ 387,60
by  Investments inequity instruients at FYTPL-Power 25,00,000 25,00,000 :
Exchanga Tndia Linited ) 250,00 250.00
Less: Fair value changes {250.00) (250.00)
Toial Aggregale Unquoted Investnienis - 387,00
D 1,060,600 7.25% of Redeentable Comutaiive Convertible Preference Shaves of T 100 each [ully paid up in Tata Ceramics Limited
i) 25,00,000 equity share of T 10 each fully paid up in Power Exchange India Limited
1. Trnde Reecivables
As b As wt
358t Mareh, 2018 Jst Mareh, 2017
& Lakls & Lakhs
Cuirent 'Trade Reccivables
Considered good (refer note 28) 14,749.32 48,703.13
Considered doubtfut 59711 686.02
- 15,346.43 49,389.15
Less: Allowanee [or Doubt fuf Fyade Receivables (59711} (686.02)
Tatnl ' 14,749,323 48,703,131

The credlit period on sele of power is upto 60 days. Thereafter, inlerest 33 charged al 15% (o [8% per annum on the outstanding balance.

‘The Company has vsed a praclical expedienl by conpuling the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision makrix. The
provision madrix takes into account histarical credit Loss experience and sljusted for forward looking information, The expected credit loss allowauce is

based an the ageing of the days (he receivables are due and the rates as per the provision matrix computed as per historical experience and expected credit

loss.
Ape of reecivables R ¥ Lalbs
As at Asat
31st Mnavel, 2018 Jist Mavch, 2017
Within the credit period 708597 21,034.60
1-30 tlays past duc 4,819.56 2,06.78
31-60 days past due 24332 4,321.67
61-90 days pasi due 7228 2,500,52
Mere than 90 days past due 3.125.30 18,585.58
Total ) 15,346.43 49,389, 15




Tuta Power Trading Company Limited

Nodes to the finhreial stafements

. As at Asat
Moyemsent in the expecied cradit loss allpwance kst Mareh, 2018 31t harch, 2017
7 Lalths T Laldiy
Balasice sl the begining of the year 686.02 77178
iMovement in expecied credit loss allowance on trade receivables calenlated al (88.91) {85.76)
litetime expecled cradii losses -
Balages 31§ the el of the yenr 597,11, GR6.02
8, Other Tinancial Assels
. Aswt Asat
A¥st March, 201H 31st Mareh, 2017
T Lalihs % Lalths
Cerrvent
(i) Seenvity Deposils
Unsecnred, considered good
Seawrity Deposits T23.56 1,026.45
Unsecured, considered doubtiul .
Security Deposils 5.00 5.00
Less: Provision (5.00) (5.00)
723.56 103645
Reccivable on sule of property plant and cquipiment - 0.53
Interest necured on fixed deposil : 1.52) R
1.52 G.53
Unseeured, considered goad
Advances (gefer note 28} 19,252.50 487.19
Unseeired, considered doubifut
Advances 59,46 10093
Less: Provision for dowhiful advances {59.46) {100.93)
’ 17,232.50 487.19
17,977.58 1,514,17
9, Now-eurrent tax Assels
As at Asnt
31st Miareh, 2018 315t viarch, 2017
¥ Lalths ¥ Lakhs
Non-curvent {nx asseis ’
Advance Income-tax (Net of provision) 219.22 9320
219.22] 92.20




Tata Power Trading Company Limjterd
Notes to the financial stateinents

10, Qiher Assets

Asat As al
31st Mareh, 2018 31st Mareh, 2017
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lalhs
Nou-current
0] Capital Advances
Unscoured, considered good - 22875
(iE) Unamoriised Premiwm for Leasehold Land
. Unsgeured, considered good 8.40 8.80],
840 230,55
Current
4] Batances with Government Anthorities
Uinscotred, considered good :
Advances -indirect tax input credit recciveble 240 .24
[{ih} Unamartised Premlin for Leasehold Land
Unsecured, considered good . 0.40 0.40
(i)  Other Loaus and Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses 1.58 145,75
16,38 149.39
11, Cash and Cash Equolvalents
- As at As af
31st March, 2018 Jist March, 2017
¥ Lulths ¥ Lalhs
(i) Batanees with Banks;
[n Currenl Acoouais 4.93 810.56
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 4,93 3156
Bank Overdeaft (Reler Note Mo, [9) (2,375.05) {43.72)
Cash and Cash Equivalents ag per Statement of Cash Flows (2,370,412} 766.84
(i) Balances wilh Bunks olher thean (i) above
. Int Deposit Accounts (with original maturity between 3 to 12 months) 91.36 R
91,36} -




Tatn Power Trnding Compuny Limited

Nates to the g

12, Equily - Shace Crpllaf

(il slalements

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par valua o' IO,'c:my DIE votc per fire and cany

(i) Welails of shurchoklers liofiling muve than 5%% shares In the Conepany

As gt 3158 March, 2018 ) As nt 3st March, 2087
Mumler ¢ Lakhs Nuinber T Lalths
Aulkorised
Equity Shares of £ 104 cach 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,06,00,000 2,000
Breferonen Shates af ¥ 10/ each 1,86,00,000 1,300 18000000 1,860
o o 3,800 3,600
Fssued nnd snbseribed supital comprises:
Fully gmid equily shares of Rs 10 cagh. 4,60,00,900, 1,600 *1,60,00,000 1,600
Totnl Tssued, Subscribed unil flly Paiduasp Share Capitnl 1,600 1,600
{i) Heconeiliation of the shazes nutsianding al the beglaning nnd at the gid of the reporling pevied
As ik 3st Maveh, 2068 As at 3k Muweh, 2007
Number ¥ Lnkhis Number T Lukds
Equity Shares
Al the beginning ol the year 1,60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600
Tssued during the yee - - - -
Quislanding al the ewil al the yesr 1,60,00.000 L4600 1,60,00,000 1600
(hy . Tevmsfrights nétaclicd to Equity Shaies

aright to dividends,

As 13151 Muych, 2013 | As at 31st March, 2017
Number: % Holidlng Number %% Holding

quity Shards of T 10/- cach Tully paid i

Tho Tuta Power Compaoy Limiled, Holding Company, 1,60,00,U¢D] 1O0% 1,60,00,000.00 100%
13, Oiber Equity

Asat Asal
' 3ist March, 2018 st March, 2017
¥ Lalihs ) Z Inlds

General flaserve

Balance at the end of the perlod 1,355.00 1,385.04
Securities Premiam Acconnt

Balance nt the end of Lhe period 2,089,50 2,9.50
Retalned Eavrings

Belaice at the beginging of the pecdod : 16,739,286 10,8044+

Add:  Otler Comaprehensive Income/(Expease) arising from Remensuremeitt of Defined Benefil Obligation (Not of Tax) 35.04 (:1.89),

Add:  Profitfor the periad ' 1,499.17 51833

Less;  Paymient of dividend on equity shace T 2.5 per shore (Previonsyeir 3 per share) 400.00 £80.00

Less: Payment af interim tlividend et cquity sharo 10 per sharg {Previcus year NIL pez shareg) 1,000.00 -

Lesst ‘Tax on Dividend ’ 286.98 97,12

Closing Dalance 10,587.09 10,739.84]
Deemed capitnl contribution from Holding comprny .

Bolanee ab the endd of the peclod 8,30 £.30]
Tated of O ther Equily 14,139.89 14,192.66

Nota:
1

2ol
5

isd of tht: Camip

he ancunt that can be disteibuted by the Company as dividends to its equity sh
above are not distributable in entivoty.

It respéct of the year ended 3131 Morch, 2018, the direslors via ciranlar sesolution ne. CR-

d ased on the requi Act, 2013, Thus; the amouals teported

BM/4120118 dated 20th March,rZOlS have declared the interim dividend of Rs. 625 per sharoen

kst Marel), 2018 to be paid 0 fully paid equity shares . The dividend was finally paid on 41h Aprit 2018,




14, Mon-currend Borrowings

Tata Fower Trating Company Limited
Mntes ta the finauncial statemenls

As nt 31st March, 2018

31t March, 2017

Non-currest Currenl Non-current Current
¥ Lalhs ¥ Lalhs ¥ Lakhs
{1} Secured - At Amor{ised Cost N
Term Leans lvom Baeks _
Kotak Mahindra Bank 3,i43.56 26043 1,403.98 248,36
Taéat 3,143.56 260.43 3,403,98 14830
(i} Tenws of repayment of outstanding balance of term loans are staled belov:
As at 31st Marel, 2018 Anm:mtloulsimming Repaj'm'ent ferms for Rate of lnteres!
Rs, in Lacs outstanding balanee
. 28 equal quarlerly
- instatiments from 301 Gmonths MCLE + [0 basis poinls i.¢ 8.55% as at 31st
Kotak Malindsa Bank 490,00 fune, 2018 fo 3ist March, |March, 2018
2025 : :
‘ 37 quoiterly inslailments | L
CLR + y 5 1.0, 8.55% as at
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,460,064 {fron 30th June, 2018 to :{:::;ng;g TR+ 10 basis points i.0. 8.55% ns at 313t
30th June, 2027 :
41 quarterly instalimonts e
. t + 10 bag 516 8.55% asai 318
Kolak Mahindra Bank 1,453.95 |from 16th April, 2018 to ;I::g?‘ ;;?ECLR WIS poiNes 1. basat sl
' i6th Aprif, 2028 T
Total 3,403,890
Asat 31 March, 2047 Amolml‘au!stnndlng Repayment terms for Rate of fnferest
Rs. in Lacs oulstanding balanee -
32 equal quarterly
. insti from 30th 6 monthis MCLR + [0 basis points L.c. §.60% as ot 3 st
K ) 5 installinents
olak Mshindea Bank 360.00 Sute, 2017 0 3 st March, {Masch, 2017
2025
4 quarterly instaliments L :
. LR -+ {0 bagis. 1s i.e, 8.60% us
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,592, 34 {from 30th June, 2G17 to ISI::‘Z?U.;;?;CI R+ £0 basis. points i.c. 8.60% os at 31sl
30th June, 2027 ’
44 quarterly installinents T ]
. MCLR + 10 Is i.e. 8.60%
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,500.00 [from 16th July, 2017 to &;:_1;“25017 basis points L. 8.60% us al 31t
L6th April, 2028 T
Total 3,052.34
Sccurily Terins
(iii) Hxclusive charge over the movenble fixed asscis of the project (ie., Wind & solar projects) and exelusive charge on project receivables,
(iv) Balanee eutstanding as al 315¢ March, 2018 is Rs, 3,403.99 lakhs (3]st March, 2017 - Rs. 3,652.34 lakhs) of which Rs. 260:43 lakhs (31st Maseh,
2014 - Rs. 248.36 Iakhs) pertains lo-current maturitics of long term borrowitgs (ses note 14}, :
V) The Company has not defanlted on repayment of oan and interest payment thercots during the current and previous year.

P
2,




Tatn Power Trading Company Limiter
MNotes to the fiancinl statenients

15, Other Pinancial Liabilities

Asat As at
31t Mareh, 2018 31st Mareh, 2017
¥ Lakhs ZLakhs
Curient .
(a) Cwrrent Maturitics of Long-term Debl {Refer note 14) 260,43 248.36
(b) Interest acerugd but not due on Borrowings 25.09 21.36
(c) Other Payables
Priyables towards Purchase of Fixed Assels 44,19 G53.44
Security Doposits from Customers 540,53 680.31
Security Deposits from Others 537 54.82|
Total 875.61 1,664.29
16, Provisions
Asat Asat
315t Mavch, 2018 31st March, 2017
¥ Lakhs ¥ Laldhs
Non-eurrent
Provision for Bmployee Benefits
Compensated Absences 89.46 100.28
Gratuity [10.1% [15.68
Post Employment Medical Benefit 600 -
Ex-Gratia and retirement gift [8.21 175
Hospitalisation in Service and long service award 22,14 7.50
TFotal Non-current Provisions 246,00 22521
Current
Provision for Employce Benefifs
Compensated Absences 346 4,99
Gratuity 1.82 3.57
Ex-Gratia and retircment gift [.27 .
Hospitatisation in Service and lang service award [.45 .
Other Provisions
Tuteriin dividend . £,000.00 .
Tinterim dividend Tax 205.55 -
‘Total Curvent Provisions 1,213.55 8.56




1 Deferred Tax Linbillites (Net)

Tata Pewer Tradiug Company Limlted
MNotes te the Nanelal stalements

As gt

Asat
3Ist DMavelr, 2018 31st hlwrch, 2017
2 Lakhs % Lakhs
Breferred Tax Assets 536.61 540.38
Beferied Tax Lialililies {1,459.02) {1,051.82)
Fotnd - Nel Delerred Toax Lighilities {923.01) (BiE.ds)]
. fsel I Pr ] 1 sedd £ all
BV 1718 Opening Bakzage Recopnised ls Pralit e evognlsed bn ather Closing bitanee
loss comypicehensive Income
Deferred fax agseis B velotlun to
Allsvensiea for Doibtfi Debts, Deposifs and Advances 274.08 (42.93) E 231,13
Pravision for Fimployee Benelits and Gihers 43.72 30.29 (18.54) 5347
KA Credil entillement 22258 2631 249.39
54038 [4.17 (18.54) 536,01
Deferred fox ifabilitées in vetatlon to
Praperty, Plaat and Equigment 1,051.92 407.20, g 1,450,02
1,051,982, U720, - 1,459.02
Net Beferred I'nx Eiabillty 511.44 393,03 18.54 913,01
1 |3 1y . .
WY 1617 Opening Balanes Recognised i Profit or Recagniset:! in other Closlog btance
lass ceaprehessive Incame
Veferved Tnx Assets in relation to
Allowanee for Deubtfil Debts, Deposits and Advances 285.59) {LL.51) | 274,08
Peovision for Baployeo Banefits and Others 815 1298 2.59| - 4392
MAT Credit entitterment 447.52 {22:.94) 222,58
761,24 (223.4%) 2.39 540,38
Bolorred "U'nx Linbilitles In relntion to
{vcoperty, Plant snd Equipment 1,082.35 (30.53) 1,051.82
1,082,35 30,53 = 1,051.82
Wefevred Tox Linbitiiy 321.09 19234 (2,59} S511.44




Tain Power Trading Company Limited
Fotes to the ffancial statements

18, Other Current Linbilitics

Asat Ag at
31st Maicch, 2018 31st March, 2017
"~ ¥ Lakhs 7 Lalhs
Current
Staiutory Liabiliiies 13475 90.43
Advance payments recelved [rom Custorners (refor note 28) - 10,105.28 43647
Other Liabilities 1.19 3.59
- 10,241.22 530.49
19. Current Borrowings
‘ As at As at
315t Mareh, 2018 3]st Mareh, 2017
T Lalths ¥ Lakhs
Secured - At Amgrtised Cost
Trom Banls
Bank Overdraft {refer note | and 2 below) 2,375.05 4372
Short-term Loans (refer note | and 2 below) - 14,189.65
2,375.05 14,233.37
237505 14,233,37

Security

B

1. Secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's wnoveable including book-debts, bills, outstanding monies,
receivables, both present and future ranking pari-passu with other parlicipating bank
2, The wéighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans is 7.34% per annum (as al 31 Mareh, 2017: 8,52% per annum)

5 except project receivables.

20, Trade payables

Asat

been relied upon by the awditors.

Asat
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
: Z Lalhs ¥ Laldws
Trade payalles (sce note below) )
- Total owtstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises & 23,1413 32,599.43
small enterprises (refir note 28)
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs & small enferprises
23,141,31 32,599,473
Note:
i, The average credit period is upto 30 days for the company.
ii. Based on information available with the company, the balance duc to micro, small enterprises as defined under the micro,

small & miedinim etterprises development (MSMED) Act, 2006 i5 Rs Nil (3 1st March 2017 ; Rs Nil) and no iiterest has been
paid or is payable during the yéar under the lenns of the MSMED Act 2006, The informatiott provided by the company has




T'ata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes to the {fancinl stalemonts

21, Bovenue from Operations

Tor ¥ear cnded

For Year ended]

Mst March, 2058 31st Maveh, 2007
¥ Lakls % Laldis
(n)  Revenuc from Power Supply (refer note 28) 3,71,39 .69 4,64,150.05
(Less): Cash Discount : {3,286.60) {3,979,06}
3,68,105.03 4,60,170.9%
(by  Other-Operating Revenue
(i) Ilncome in respect of Services Rendeced 52.64 80.29
(if} 1.iabilities no longer required written back 411.35 L.98
(iii) Miscetlnneous income 17.25 A.14
(iv) Delayed Payment Charges reeovered 16,01 19,14
{v) Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances (Ne(} £30.38 33.25
(vi) Other income 40925 108.76
1,036,88 337.52
Total Revenue from Opemtions ©3,09,141.91 4,60,508.51
22, Other Income ]
For Yenr ended For ¥earr ended
31st Maveh, 2018 st Mareh, 2017
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
()  Dividend Income
Dividend from preference shares “ 21,75
- 2175
(b}  Gain on Investinents i
Gain on Currenl Investment measured at FVIPL-Mutval Funds 48.66 108.13
’ 48,606 108.13
(¢}  Other Nun—nperﬂtiug Inconte
Interest lnconte from fixed deposils 1.52 17.40
Other inlerest 1.78 -
330 17.40
Tatal Other Income 51,96 147,28

XN o
N e IR
. et




Tatln Powsr Trading Company Limited
Motes 1o the financind statements

23. Employcs Benefits Kxpense

Salarles and Wages
Confribution 16 Provident Fund
Grafuity Expense (refer note 32)
Staff Welthre Expenses

Tor Vear ended
Jist Maich, 2018

Tor Year endadl
315t March, 2007

T Talhs < Lakhs
856.90 736.12
35.60 30.82
29.03 24.12
179.37 12846
1,160.99% 919,52

24, Finanee Costs

(a) . Interest Expenscs

Borrowings

Interest on Borrowings from Related Parties
interest on Loans - Banks & Financiat Institutions

Others
Interest ou Bank Overdraft

Baulk charpes

T'or Year ended

Tor Year ended

3ist Maveh, 2018| 315t March, 2047
< Lalhs T akhs

1.30 , .

826.40 1,501.33

4235 185.67

010.05 T,687.07

103.00 1£6.54

103.00 116.54

1,013.05 1,803.56

25, Othier xpenyes

For Year ended

Foyr Year ended

31st March, 2018 31sf Mavch, 2017
¥ Laldis ¥ Lakhs
Rental of Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, etc. 13346 123.47
Tnsurance 1.75 4,90
Other Operation Expenscs 13996 179.05
Travetting and Conveyanes Expenses 55.63 72.88
Consultants' Fees 27095 264,71
Auditors' Remunération 22.19 3143
Cost of Services Procured 29772 253.99
Bad Debts 17.39 -
Braud Equity Expenses 152.69 5847
Amortisation of Advines Towards Leasehold Land 0.40 040
Decrease in fair valuation of investment 387.00 .-
Legal Charges . 49.44 45.83
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 55.05 78.37
1085 on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 0.97 (0.61)
Miscellaneous Expenses 184.78 169.17
Total 1,769.38 1,282.66
Note; .
Bayment to Stafutory Auditors compiise {inclusive of GST)*
- For Aundit 13.48 19.55
- For Taxation malters 4.48 2,04
- For Other services . 147 7.64
- For Reimbursement of expenses 2.76 2.20
Total 22.19 31.43

services and out-of pocket expenses

¥ Above auditor's remineration also ineludes predecessor suditor fees of TNR 5.85 Lacs paid for limited review , other




Tata Powes Trading Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

26, Fncoine taxes recognised in profit and loss

31st March, 2018| 31st Mareh, 2017
¥ Liukhs % Laiths
Current {ax .
In respedt of the current year 601,50 224.94
In respect of lhe previous years (66.66) 16.05
' 534,84 241,99
Deferred tax
Tn respeet of the eurrent year 419.83 (31.99)
MAT credit utilised {26.81) 188.76
Totat Defarred tax expense 393,02 156.77
Total fncome tax expense 927 .46 327,76

TFor Year ended

For Yenr ended

26 .1 The income fax expense Jor the year ean be veconciled fo the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Income tax expense caleuialed at 34.608% (2016-17: 34.608%)

[iffect of income thal is exempl fiom faxation

Cifeit of expenses thal we not deductible in determining taxzbie profit
Eifeet related to adjustment for provions years

Effect of items not reclassified to profit & loss account

Effect of change in {ax rule

For Vear ended

Tor Vear ended

Iat vinrch, 2018} 31st Mareh, 2017
< Lalths ¥ Lakhs
2,427.03 916,09
839.95 317.04
- (7.53)
162.27 40.87
(66.66) © 4738
(48.54) .
10.84 -
927.86 397,76

The tax rate used for the years 2017-20E8 and 2016-17 reconciliations abave is the corporate tax rate of 34.608% payable by

corporate entities in India on taxable profils under the Indian income tax law,

26,2 Incone tax recognised in other comprehensive ineome

Deferved fax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in ofher comprehiensive income
Remcasnrements of defined benefit obligsition :

Tofal income tax recongnised in olher comprehensive income

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehiensive income into:
- Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- lteit that may be reclassified to profit or loss

For Year ¢nded

Tror Yenr ended

Jist Mareh, 2018 | 31st Mareh, 2017
¥ Lakhs . T Lalhs

(18.54) 2.59

{18.54) 2,59

2.59

. (1854




Tata Power 'I‘rudiﬁg Company Limited

Nates to the financial statements

27, Eavnings per share

Basic antl Dilsded cavnings per share

For Yenr ended .

Tror Yery ended

J1st Mmweh, 2018

Jist Mareh, 2017

837

3.24

Basic/ Diluied carnings per share )
The camings and iveighted average number of equity shares used i the caleulalion of basic/ dituted earnings per share are as follows:

For Year ended For Yenr eided
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
' ¥ Laklhs ¥ Lakhs
Profii for the year attributable lo owners of the company 1,499.17 518.33
Baraings used in the saleulstion of basie/ diluted surnings pee share (Rs. in Lacs) 1.499.17 518.33

Lor Year ended
31st viarch, 2017

For Yem ended
31st vnrceh, 2018

Weigltted average number of equity shares for the purposes of hasic/ dilsried carnings per

share. 1,60,00,000

1,60,60,000

Note: ‘There are no polential equity shares which are anti-dilutive.

28, Revision of MPL farriff based on CERC order

‘The Company lus fong kerm contract for purchase of 600 MW of power from Maitlion Power Limited (MPL), which hay been in um sofd to Tata
Power Delhi Distribution Coinpany Limited (TPDDIL) and to West Bengal Stale Llestricity Distribution Company Limited (WBSEDCL), MPL
bills the Company on the basis of tariff as delermined by Cntral Elecuicily Regulatory Conmission (CERC). Fhe tariff charged by the Company Lo
TPDDL md WBSEDCL is based on CERC deterinined fariff for MPL,

Ot 27th December 2017, CERC las issued Order with respect to MPL for truing up for the period fiom FY 12 o FY 14 and tacdl deicrmination for
the period from FY 15 o FY'19. Based on the CERC Order, MPL hias issued a credit note of Ry, 38,653.52 lakhs (e the Company. and the Company
las in dura issued credit notes tolating to s, 38,653.52 lakhs 6n TPDDL and WRSEDCL. On account of these credil notes, Company has reduced
Revenne from Power Supply as well as Cost of Power Purchased in the corrent yeur by Rs. 38,653,52 lakhs. Correspondingly company has reduced
reeelvable from TPDDL and WBSEDCL. and payable to MPL by Rs.38,653.52 lakhs.

29, Segment information

The Company is tainly engaged in the business of trading of electricity in India. Based on the information reported o the chief operating deeision
maker (CODM) for the purpose af wesouzee allogation and -assessmens of performance, there nee tio reportable segments in aceordance with the
requirements of Indian Acedunting Standard 108-"Operating Segment Reporting', notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

30, Reladed parvly disclosures

(n) Name of related pavties and deseription of relationship:
Controlling entity (CIR):
The Tati Power Company Limited (TPCL) (Helding Company)
Fellow subsidiaries {where transactions have taken plage during the year):
() Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited ('I'PD_DL)
(i1 ivlaithon Power Limited {MPL})
{ii} Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSS)

(iv} Tata Power Renewal Encrgy Limited (TPREL)
= Costal Gujrat Power Limited (CGPL)

(vi}  Welspun Renewable Energy Limited (WREL)
(vii)  Welspun Solar Kannada Private Limitcd {WSKPL)
(viii)  Vagarai Windfarms Limited (VWFL)

Key Management Personnel (IKMFP)

(i} Saujecy Melra, Managing Divector !

(if) Ainey Naik, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary [
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Tata Power Tratling Compruny Lintited
Noles to the finnascial staicmenls

31, Cntegarics of lieanch) laskoment

31.1 Set out below, is'a comparison by class of the earrying amotnt and fair value of the finaveial instniments;

Curryviag wilue Yair Value
3ist Mareh 3ist hiaveh 31st Maveh 3Ist dinrch
2018 W7 ) 208 27
€ Lakhs % Lakhs g Lakhs { Lakhs

Flpaneial assels
Cash and Cash Equivalents ) 493 810.56 193 810.56
Other Balances with banks 91.36 - ‘9136 -
‘Trade Receivables 14,799.32 18,703.13 14,749.32 48,703.13
Uinbillzd Revenues 19,5231 11,344.15 19,5237 1§,394.45
Desigrated a5 al FYTPL -inveslment in viquoted equity ind N
prefergnee shares. : - . 8700 - 387.00
Other Opancial ossats t7,977.58 1,557 . ) 17,971,538 151417
Total : . 5234690 - §2,159.01 52,340.50 62,159.01
Finaucia Jinkilities
Trads Payables 23,144.31 32,359.13 23,141.31 32,590.45
Fleating mta borcowvings® 342008 1.672.70 3,420.08 3,679.70
Oiler financial Habititics . S90.09 1,388.57 590.69 1.388.57

21,160.43 37,667,710 27,160.48 3766710

+ Inehwes cument maturities of long term debls and interest accured bul not due on bormowing
‘It management assessed that cash anh cash equivalents, other bolances with hank, trade receivables, inbilied , trade payables, other financial aasets and Habilitiss
approxinale their carrying amounts targely due to thy short termt materities of 1hoese instewments.

The lair value of the financiat assels and Habilities is inchuded nf the aigunt al whiclt the instrment could be exchanged in a curcent wansaction belween willing partieas. The
fetlowing metiods 21:d assumptions were used to estimate e fair values.

Congidoting the ined losscs ir Lhe comp In which the invesiment is held, fair value of ie nnqueted squity shares have-beci estimated wsing a Adjosted Net
‘Assel Value Methed, The valustion requires managernent lo make cerduin asswnplions about she moded mputs, ineluding realisable value of asscls; The probabilities of the
various estimates within the range can bie reasonably essessed and aro used in ziagerent’s eslimate of fair valus for those vnguoted nvesinents,

‘I'he sigmificant unobservable. input used in the fair valne messiernen( categorized within Levol 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with n quantitative sensitivity anafysis os ut
31at March 2018 and 313t March 2017 are as shown befow:

Deseription of significanl anobseivable fhpms to valuation:

Valuation techniques Stgaificnat Range (weighted svernge) ‘Sensitividy of theingnt
uzobservable to fair value
inputs
FVTPL agsels in unquoted cauily shares of Power Exchange Indin Net  Assel  Value :
s Nomg MNA -
Limited Method :
. . " i eonsidered at 100%,
FVTPL assels in wiguoted preference shares of Tala Cerarales  Adjusted  Net  Asset Realisshle Valug of o ; . e
Linitedk Vahie Methad Tinished Goods 25% of canying vadue e fair Vah{“ wiill e
negative
Reconeilintion of fair valse mensurentent of unguoted shares elassified as Fair value theough profit and foss nssets
R Lokhis
Particulars 31st Miarch 2018 31st March 2017
Opening batance 8700 365.25
Dreciease i faie valee of investinert af FVTPL (357.00) 21.7%

. Ciosing bolance - 337.00




Tata Power Trading (.'o.rupnuy Limited
Moles fo (he fionanciak stafesrents

312 Fuiv vulie hiernrely

The fair valus hisraschy is based on inpts te vrlualton techutiques that ars used t medsnie fair vafue dat are cither vbservable or unchzervable ard cunsists of the following thres

levels:

Level 1 Topits ars quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabiitics. This inelutles muinal funds it have qoted price. .

Lovel 2 Inputs aro other than quoled prices includud \withis Levef } That are ebservable for (e asset or Hability, either directly (ic. a5 prives) or indiveclly (Le. derived Fom
prices). This inelusfes and investment i redeemable non-cumntalive preferency shares and equily shares.

Level 3 pnpuls see ot based on observable market dato {unobservabile inpuis). Fair valnes are deteamined in whele £r in pad using o valuation nede} based on assumplions (hat
aro neither supported by prices from observable cunrent skt twansaclions i the same instrument nor are they Lased on available market dala. This includes noguoted
equily shares. . ’

‘e filloving lable summarizes fuaneial nssets and Babililies nroasnred st fair value on & recurring basis nud funneial pssew that are not measurad 6t lair value en » securtng basis

(Lt fair value disclomupes ava Tequired) :

Fatr value klerarchy as al 3ist #areh, 24§

Cuoted prices in Significant Sigmitivant
aclive marksts  observable inpots  unebservable inpuls Total
Bate of vahiatian (Level 1) {Leve! 2) (lovel 3).
Asset facasueed al Gl value
FYTPL finoneial investmenis L
invastment in couity shinres of Fower Txchange trdia Liniled 2hh Apnl, 2617 . . - - - . ‘ B
Inyestment it preference shares of Tata Ceranitics Limited 213t March, 2018 . - - B -
TinhlfEes for which fuir vielues are disclosed
Floating raie bomowings - 340399 - 340099
Tulul * - 3,403.99 . - 303,99
Falr valus hierareley ns nt 3isl Mnﬁll, 2017
Quoted prices in Sipodficant Siguificont Lotal
getive mnarkets  obgervtble jgpma  uncbservable inputs Tota
Date of vatuntion {Leyel 1) {Level 2} {Level 3}
Asset mensuresd at frir value
FVEPLL financial investments
fuvestment in equily shares of Power Exéhanye Indin §imited 27th Apii, 2017 - - - -
Investment in preference shares of "Tats Coramies Limiled _ 0dth May, 2017 - - 387.00 18700
- - 387.00 3B700°
Linbflities Tor which fsir values arailisclosed
Fluating raty Lemewings - 3,652,341 - 3,632.34
Totnl . : - 3,652,34 - 3,052,234

31,3 Caphinl anagement and Genrfag Ratle
For the purpose of the Coirpany's capitel management, capited includes isswed enuity capital and all other equily feserves attzibulable to the equity holders of the Company. The
primay objective of the Company's capital management is to maxinize the shareholder valus, .

The Company manages its capital structure and makes &dj ts in tight of changes in iv conditions and the requirements of e financial covenants. From time to time,
the Company roviews #ts pelicy related to dividend payment to shareholdurs, retun capital to shareholders. The Company monitors eapital using_ gearing ratio, which is ret debi
diwidid by total apital plus net debi. The Company's policy is o keep the gearing mtio belween 20% and 60%. The Company inchules within nit debt, interest boaring loans and
borrowings, Jess cash and ensh cquivalents. ) .

The Company's capilal managoment is inteled to ereato value for sharehalders by fheilitating the mesting of its long-lensa and short-ternt goals, Its Capilal strusiuse consists of not

debt (borrawings as detaited In notes below) and total equily.




Tatn Fower Triding Company Linited
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Geariag ralio

Tie grearing ralio at lhe end of the reporiing period was as folfows: 3 Lakhs
st Moreh, 2018 3151 Bdarch, 2057

Debt (i) : 5,779.00 17,885.71
Less: Cash and Tank balpnces 96.29 31056
et debt 368215 . 17075.15
Tutat Copital (ii) - 15,639.89 15,792 .66
Capital aml nel debt . 21,322.64 2286781
Wet debt 1o Total Capitol phis et debt ratio {34) ' 726.65 31.95
6] Debt is definied ns foug-term bamowings {including cureat malurities) and shai-tern borowings,

@i Equily s defined as Equity share eapital and other equiily inofuding reserves aid surplus.

In erdur to achivve this evoratt abjective, the Comtpany’s capital rmanagerment, anongst eller tings, aiins to esore et L mects Francinl covenaals #llached te the interest-bearing
Joans and borrowings thal define capital sinucture requirements, Hreaches in mecling dw fuancial covenants would permil the bank 1o inmiedintely call loans mid borrowings. There
fiave been no breaches in tho financind cavenants of sy interest-bearing loans and bomowing in the ciorenl period,

The Comprny has bren monitoring Net debt ¢o “Fatal Capital plus net debt salio during the year as against Met debt 20 cquily ralio monitered in the provious year. However, there is
10 chanae in the vvemli objectives, policies or proceases for wannging eapilat during tho years ended 31 st Maceh 2058 and 3 st March 2087, :

3.4 Financlal yvisk manngenent abjectives and policles

The Company’s principal financiat Yiabiliting, comprise borrowings, trade oud other payibles and otber Ginancial fiobitilies. "fhe main purpose of these Imancial liabilitics is to
linanee the Compmiy's operalions. ‘The Company's principal financial assels include trade and other reccivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balinces, usbilled
receivables and other financial assels thal derive direcily from its opesations, ‘The Company alsa halds 7V IPL fnvestments,

Tho Company is exposed to nsirket risk, credit risk and lquidity 1isk. ‘The Company’s senior oianagamanl oversees the manzgement of these risks. "The Company’s senigr
wariagement is suppoiried by 4 risk commiltes that revievws the financial risks and the sppropriots financial tisk govetnance framewerk for the Company, The Companiy's finnacial
risk activities are govemed by apprepriate policies and provedures and that finaneiel risks are identificd, measured und mmanaged in accordance with the Company”s policies and risk
abjectives, i is the Company’s policy that nio tmding in derivatives for specolative purposes muy be underiaken

BEarket eish

Market zisk Is the risk that the fair valie of fidure cosh flows of a financial instroment will Huclunte becanse of changes in watkel prices. Market sisk somprises of two typtes of rigk:
interest rate risk , price risk .Finonciul instruments aflected by miarkel risk include toans and borrowings.

‘The sesiivity amiyses in the fallowing seetions relate to tha postlion as at 315! Macch, 2018 and 3 s Marelh, 2017,

The sersilivity tsalyses have been prepared on {he basis that the smount of nel debl a5 al ¥st March, 2018, The analyses exclnde the impact ol movaments in market varibles on:
the canying vilues of graluily and ether post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the nor-financial assets

aterest rade risk management

Interest rate risk is 1he vigk that the faic value or future cosh llows of & financial insinuneal wili lucleato beeause ol ehiauges in masket interest rates. The Company's exposwre 1o the
risk of chauges in market interest mates relates primarily to the Company”s kang-leam deb obligations with floating intezest rates R
Inferest rate sensitivity:

The senaitivity analysis below have besn determined based on exposire o interest rates for term loans at the erd of he repoding pedad and Ihe stipnlated cliange tding place at
thi: bayinning of the financial year and held censtant throughout the eeporting period iu ease of lerm Joans that have [oating mies.

If the interest rales hiad been SO basis points higher or lower and all the other vadiables were held constant, the offee| an Intecest expense for the rospective financial years and
consecent ¢lect on Company's profit i that financial year wanld have baen as below:

€ Lakha
As of 3fst March, 20£8 Ay of 31s¢ Bureh, 2017
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bpa inciosse 50 bps decrsasef”
Interest expense on loan [3.18 {13.18) 18.26 (18.26}
Efteat an profit before tax {18.18) 18.18 {18.26) 18.26}
Price Risk
‘The Company is éxposed to equily /preferense price risks arising from equity/preference insl ¢ investmenls. Thesa inve btz are held for stenlegio purpose,
‘Tho carrying pmount of the Comapany's investment doss d ns at fair value through profit or less at the end of the reporing period nre as folfows:
N T Lalds
As of 3tst March, 2018 As of 315t Warch, 2017
Twestment in equily Insteuent - -
Trvestment in proference Instrument - 387.00

For the year eaded 31st March, 2018 and 31st March, 2057 cvery 9,50 perceitage incrense /doerease In the value of investments, will sffzct the Company’s profit befors Tax by
Rs. Nil and Rs. 1.9 Laes ssspectively ’ '




“Fada Poaver Trading Cottpany Limited
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Credié risk manegement

Credi risk is ihio oisk lhal\cmnnmmatty will rot meet s ebfigetions under a tingacist inslnonert of custemer conlrac, leading to & tinancial (oss. The Cannpany is exposal to credit
risk from its opierating activitics {primauily trade receivables). Cradit exposure is controlled by counter pady limsils Fur snajor counter partios that are ceviewed and appoved by the -
Management segutarly. Ongoing credil evaluation is performed based on (e finaneigt condition’ of reveivobles and the collaterals are hefd as seerily in soing of the cases. The
Company gencraily deals wilh parties which has good oredit rating sonthiriess given by external valisg agdiities er bastd on Company's interninl assessinent as lisled below:

: 3ist hlarch, 2008 3ist Mnreh, 2017
‘Trade receivables 14,749.32 48,703.13
Ottwr financial assels 17.617.58 1,514.17
Totat . 32,726,90 50,417,340

Refler note 7 for credit dsk aml other information in respeet of trade recoivables. Other receivables as stated ahove are due from the parties nder ol coness of he business and
as such The Company believes vxposure to credil risk te hranininal.

Liguldily risk managemaent

The Company manages liquidity risk by maimsining adequato raserves, banking Tacilities and reserva bomowing facitilies, by conlinsously monlorings forecnst sod attual cash Nows
and ruatching the malurily profilas of fimucial assats and liabilities. Uz Company has access 1a a sulficient variely of sources of funding and debt matring witlin 12 radnths can be

rollad over wilh sitisting Jendess.

The table betow sunumariaes the saatwily profile of the Company’s fnancial linbilities based on eontraclual undiseounted payments.

% Lalis--
Hp o lto 5 §t “T'otal Carrying Amost
Lyer yenrs yEALKS :
Alat Alarch, 215
Non-Derivatives -
Bomowings” : o 2,660.57 1,260.58 1,652,983 5,804.13 580413
Tterest on aboye borrowings N 28017 867.40, 375,58 1,523.15 1,523.15
‘Frade Payables 22,1413} ’ . - 23,1413t 21,141.31
Other Finangial 1 iabilittes i 590,69 - - 590,00 590.09
Toinl Non-Devivalive Linbllilies . 26,072.14. 2, 157,98 222856 31,058.68 31,058.48
31s¢ Maveh, 207
Nun-Trozivatives
larrowings* . 11,509,09 1,138.62 228537 17,213.08 17,913.08
Inlerest on pbove borrowings 30470 97RIS 55344 §,826,76 1,836,786
Trade Payables 32,599.43 - - 12,599.43 32,509.413
Qiler Financial Libbilities 3,388.57 - - 1,388.57 1.388.57
Tatal Nou-Derivaiive Liabilities 48,801,772 2,167.57 2,768.48 53,737,854 53,7381

¥ Ineludes cument inaturitics of long term debts ang interest accured bul not das on lomowing.
The Company las ecess to Broncing facitities as described in nola belew. The Company expeets lo meet ils obfigations front eperating cosh Hows and proceeds of maluring

financial assels.

Fluascing facililies

¥ faokhs
31st Dlarch, 2018 31t March, 2017
Seewred Long tem facility will various mafusity dates through to 16th April, 2028,
Amount used 3A4019¢ - 3,652.34
Amoitil uused 300,00 342.00
Secured baok overdsaft and other loan Tacililies .
Amount used 237505 14,233,137
Ameunt nmised 30,680.95 18,766.63

31.5 Excessive rish coacentration

Coneealntions indicate the relative sensitivily of the Campany's performancs to developmerls affeciing a pasticulac industry. Concentrations arise when 2 narnber of covnterpariies
are engaged in similar business activities, or acliviries in ilie sama geographical region, or have ccenomic features that would eause their aliflity to meet contractusk ob!iga'sion§ tobe
simitarly affecled by changes in econontic, political or other conditions. :

"The Company’s sisk mar policies and procedures include speeific guidalines 1o focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolic to marage business concentralion ceedit
‘risk. [dentificd eoncentrations of eredil risks are controlied and managed aceordingly. N
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32, Cmployee benelit plen

32,1 Defined contribution plan

The Company snakes coniribution iowards provident fimd which is 3 defined cantribulion plan tor qualitying employess. The provident find plan Is cperated by the Régimml
Provident Fusl Commissioner. Under ihe schienye, the Company is required to coitiribote a specified percenlage of payroll cost 1o the relitement fignefit scheme to Ml the
benelits. The only ebligation ol the Company with respect 1o the retizement benefil scheime is to make (he specified conliibutions.

The fotal expense recogmised in (he Siatement of Profll and T.ose is Rs. 35.69 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March, 2017 Rs. 30.82 Lakhs) mud represonts contribuion
payable to the Employee Provident Fuad. As at 31st March, 2018, contribution of Rs. ©.3% Lakhs (as al 315¢ Marels, 2017 Rs. 7.76 Lakhs) due in respect of TY 2017-18 (FY
2016-17) reporting period had net been: paid to the plans. The amowiss were paid subsequent to the e of the respective reporling periods.

32.2 Detined enchit plan
The Comp‘mly opernies the fellowing ualunded defined Denefit plans:

Past Employment Megical Repeftls
The Cowpany provides cerfain posi-employment kealth care benefiis to superannuated cmployees al some of #s locations, In tenms of Ihe plan, the retived employees can
avnil fres niedical check-np sl medicines al Company's factlities, .

Ex-Grafla Denth Benefit
The Company has & defined benelit plan geanting ex-geatéa in case of death during service. The bene(it consists of a pre<leternsined Tampsum amount alongwith a s
detennined bused on the last denwn basic salary per month amd the length of service,

Hetivement Gt
Tlie Company has a defined benetit plan gransing a pre-tieterinined sum as rerement gifl on snpesansuation of an employes,

Gratutiy
“The Giroup has a delined benefit gty plan, The graleily pian is primarily gaverned by tha Payment of Graluity Acl, 1972, Employees who are in contiouous semcc for
a peried of five yaars are eligible for pratuity, The level of benefits provided depends an e mv.ulimr s fength of serviee and salary nl dhe retirvamenl date

Rishs pssoclnted with Pianr Provisions
IRisks assogiated with the plan provisions are acluarial risks. These risks are: - (i) Inlerest isk {discount rate eisk}, (if) wrortality risk and ({ii) salary risk.

Tuvestaient visk:
The present value of the defined berefit play imbaluy is Lulcutatcd using a disecunt tuts which is deleniined by reference lo market yields ai the end of the reporting period of
government bonds.

Tutevest visk {discount rate rlsk):
A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rale) will increase the plan tnkilicy.

Merdality visk:
The present value of the dafined beniefit plan linbility ix caleubated by reference to the best estineate of the nzortality of plan pacticipants both during ond after the employment,
Indian Assured Lives Moriality (2006-08) oltinate table liss been vsed in respect of the nbove, A change in worlality te will have a bearing on the plan's Kabikity.

Salary visic
The present value.of the defined benel‘l plan liabitity is caleulated with the assumption of satary incrense rate of plan participaats in future. Deviation in the mie of increase
of salary in fatwre for plan participants from tlse rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of abligation will have a bearing on tle plan's lability,

Bemopraphic visk

This is the sk of varability of results due to unsystematic nature of desrements that include mortatity, withdsawal, disability and retiroment, The effect of these decroments
on the defined bonefit obligations is not straight forward and depends ugion thé combinalion of salary increase, tiscoun rate and vesting criferion,

Withdvawals ]

Actual Withdrawals providing higher or Jower than assamed withdrawnls and change of withdrawal rate at subsequent valuations ean‘impact plan's liability.

Principal aetunvial assaanptions for all the unfnded defined benefits phans:

Asat Asat
3i-ar-18 3-Mar-17
Discount rate (p.a,} 1.90% 7.40%
Bxpeeled ralg of salary increase {p.a} 7.00% : 8.00%

Nole:

1. The estimates of fiitwre satazy Increages considered take into aceount the jiufiation, seniority, promotion and other relovant Bctors.




oty Power Trading Compnity Litted
Notes to flse fanaueial statements

Demegraphle assamptions:
. Asal
3t-Mar-18

As nt
31-Adar-17

Martalily sable indian Assured Lives
Morlalily (2086-08)

Withdesvwsl eate {p.a.) {ape 21 to 44 years) ‘ 2.50%
Wilhdrawal raie (p.a.) (above 435 years ol Age) LOU%

Anwwnls vecopnised i stntement of profit snd loss in respect of these defined benelits plius are as follaws:

tndian Assured Lives
Mortality {2006-08)

5.00%
5.00%

R, in Lakhs

Asat "Agat
31-Mar-18 af-Mar-17

Serviee Cost
Current Serviee cosl ’ 22,89 17.23
Pasl Service cost 42.00 -
Net interest expense . . 10.29 7.36
Component of thefined herefit costs recogalsedd in profit ov loss 7518 24,59
Renwnsuremead on (e et defined Jsenefit Trablity :
Actoarial (Gains)asses arising from changes in demographic assumptions . . 25.14 -
Actuarial (Gains)flosses arsing from chianges in finaneial assumptions ’ {31.33) 948
Acluarial (Gains)losses arsing from expericnes adjisbnent A ’ {4} (2.7}
Componcnts of defhned Benefit costs revopnised in other camprehensive . {53.58} 674
Tatal ' 2160 3133

The corvent servics eost and fle net inlerest expense Tor tie year are included in "Hmployee benelits expense” in {he Statement of Profit and Loss.
The remeasurement.of the net defined liabilily is ircluded in othor conprehensive incame

The amount inctuded in the alance Sheel misiug From the entity's obligation in respeet of its defined banelits plons us toilows:

Rs, in Lakhs

Particulnrs . Asat
31-Mar-§8

As at
JE-Ne-17

_ Present value of funded defiued henefit abligation (13749} CR00
Taiv vafue of plan assels . .
Funded status (defieit) : {137.49} {12£.00%

Movemeats in the present value of the defined henefit obligations ave a3 foltows:

Rs, in Laldis

Asat Asat
! 31-Mui-i8 31-Mar-17
Opening defined benefit abligations . . 120,99 92.05
Service cost ) . . 64.89 17.23
InLerest cost i 10,26 1.36
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 25.16 -
Actisariat {pains)losses arsing frem changes in financinl issumptions : (3138 2.48
Actandal gains arising Gom cxpericace adjusiment (47.41) {2.14)
Benefits paid {5.10) {2.31)
121.01

Closing defined henefit abligniion 137,49




Todu Power Trading Contpany ELimifed
Notes to the ftannwckad slautements

Sensithvify Analysis

Significant acluarial assumgiions tor e detennination of the defined benefit ebligation are discount rate, expeeted salary incrsase and moriality, Fhe sensitivity unalyses
below liave been delermined aged an reasonably possible changes of the asshimptions occurring at the end of the reparting perind, while oldhng alf otherassumplions
constant

Pasticulars ' As at 31-Mne-2018 As nd 31-Mur-2017

Deerense Incvenze Deeréase Increase

Discount Raie {~0,5%) . £1.98 - (10.66) .64 (7.79)
(% change comparcd to buse due ta sensitivily) (8.71%6) 1I5% {1.96%%) 6.A3%
Growth Rele (/+0.5%) {10.39} - 1156 (7.80) 9.46

(% change conzpared to base due to sonsitivity) . 7.55% -B.41% 6.4d4% (7.82%)
Motinlily Rate {~/+! year) o-(0.28y 028 a1 {0.01}
(% chanpe compared 1o base due ta sensitivity) 0.20% {0.20%) (0.01%) 0.01%
Wiithdiaw! Rale (-/F5%) . 5.08 (237N 0.04 (6.04)
{% change compared ta base due Lo sensilivity) .13%) 16.27% (0.04%) 0.04%

The expeeted madurity annlysis of defined henefis obligatian vy vespective cid of Onancial year's (valued on wudiscowided bnsisy ave as Tollows:

{RRs, in Lalihs)

. . It-Mare18 31-Mas17
March 3§s1, 2049 324 . 382
March 3ist, 2020 31.89 1479
Macch 3Est, 2021 . 2234 . 189
Muozch 3Est, 2022 . ' 512 102
Mareh 31st, 2023 (AL} 25.04
March 31st, 2024 (o Mazeh 31st, 2028 . 4048 48.37

90,35 352.93

. 3 NEnr-18 3{-Mar-17

‘The average duration of (he defined benefit plan ob¥yation represents average duration for aclive membars (based on 8.1 years 13 yeurs

tliscounted cash Hows)
33 Contlugent Binhilities
The Comgpany does not have any pending titipations which would intpnet its finmicial position.

34 Capital Connnilmendis
As on reporting date thete are no capiial comuitmeit.

‘
35 There weie no amounts whieh were required to be fransferred to the [nvestor Hducation and Protection Fund by the Company.
36 Carporate Soclal Responsibility
Gross nmounl reqired to ba spent by the Company duriag the year ended 315t March, 201 8: Rs. 54.81 Lakhs (Previous yéar Rs. 78,33 Lakhs)
Ansount spent during the year ended 31st March, 2018; Rs, 55,05 Lakbs

Rts in Lakhs

I*atd Yet fo be ppld Total
i} Construetionfacquizition of nny nysels ‘ - - ’ .
. ) ) &)
ii).0n purposes other than (i) above : 55.05 [ ' 55,05
‘ (18.37) ) (7837
iii} Detnils of rcinlcd pany irsasaction
- Contribution during the year ended 3Est March, 2017 - - -
~ : © B 3
- Payable as al 3151 March, 2038 - . - .
9] =) )

* Tigure in brackets pertain to the pravious year




Tata Power Tvading Compnny Limied
Netes to the fizanein] sintensends

36 Appreval of fionncial Statoments
The Financinl Statements for the yoar ended March 31, 2018 were appraved by board af directors and authorised for issuc on April 25,2018

As per aur repoit of even dale For nid o behalf of the Board of Divectors
For 8.1L.Batlibol & Co. LLP . ™ o T
Chartered Aceountanls - y "y \[\f e
Finm Repistration Ne: 30160312/ E300005 . AT g %C 7 {) 7

* N f . S. Rasnalcrishan Sanjedv-ilehin

Rt R S C}mirtu' i Managing Director
per Sanjesv umar Singhal . 1 !
Partner o Nereth
Mumbcrsllij No. 95377 » e

Aniey Waik

Chief Finaneinl Officer & Company Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: 25th Apdl, 2018

Plaee: Mew Balhi
Date: 25th Aprit, 2018







PARIKH & ASSOCIATES o ?:111 ?ﬁl’{th Floor, Sai-Dwar CHS Lid,
COMPANY SEC RETARIES . ~ SabTV Lane, Opp Laxmi Industrial Estate

Off Link Road, Above Shabari Restaurant,

Andheri (W), Mumbai . 400 053

Tel. : 26301232 / 26301233 / 26301 240

Email : cs@parikhassociates.com
parikh.associates@rediffmail.com

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH, 2018

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manageriai Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To, ‘
The Members,
Tata Power Trading Company Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Tata Power Trading
Company Limited(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company, the information
provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and
the representations made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31¢t
March, 2018 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms. and returns filed and
other records made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on 31 March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;(Not applicable during the Audit period)

(iii) The Depositorieé Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;




Continuation Sheet

(iv) Foreign Exéhange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings; '

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’)

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period) : :

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and amendments. from time to time;(Not applicable
to the Company during the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Share Based Employee Benefits)
Reguiations, 2014;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations,2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchénge Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 'Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

a. The Electricity Act, 2003 and Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Procedure, Terms and Conditions of grant of trading licence and related
matters) Regulations, 2009

b. The Electricity Act, 2003 and The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Fixation of Trading Margin) Regulations, 2010

c. The Electricity Act, 2003 and The Central Electricity- Regﬁlatory Commission
(Power Market) Regulations, 2010 - '
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& The Blectricity Act, 2003 and The Electricity Rules, 2005

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with
respect to board and general meetings.

During the period under review the Company has generallycomplied with the
provisions.of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.The
changes in the compositien of the Board of Directors that took place during the
petiod under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
jtems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. :

We further report that during the audit period no events occurred which had
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines etc.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries
ASL
b
Signature:
Sarvari Shah

Partnher
ACS No: 27572 CP No: 11717

Placé: Mumbai
Date: 25.04.2018

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
Forms an integral part of this report,
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' Annexure A’

To,
The Membets _
Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit. ‘

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to
. obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
- records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. '

5. © The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination
‘was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability -
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company. -

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

s

Signature:

Sarvari Shah

Partner .
"ACS No: 27572 CP No: 11717

~ Place: Mumbai
Date: 25.04.2018




PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

: TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTERED OFFICE: CARNAC RECEIVING STATION, 34, SANT TUKARAM ROAD,

MUMBALI 400 009 :
: CIN: U40100MH2003PLC143770

Name of the ' E-mail Id :

member(s) - '

Registered address ‘ Folio No/*Client Id :

*DPid: N/A

I/We, being the member(s) of : shares of TATA POWER TRADING
COMPANY LIMITED; hereby appoint: - :
1) : of having e-mail id - or
failing him _
2) of having e-mail id ~----: : or
failing him L
3) of having e-mail id

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poli)
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 15! Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be
held on Monday, the 13t of July, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the Conference Room of The Tata
Power Company Limited, Fort House, Mumbai 400 001, and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

** [ wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Si Description of Resolutions o FOR AGAINST
Resoluti ,

on No.

Ordinary Business :

1. Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements, Reports

of Board of Directors and Auditors for the Financial Year
ended on 31% March, 2018.

2. Declaration of dividend on Equity Shares for FY 2017-18.
Special Business _
-3. Not to fill the vacancy created on the Board of Directors in

place of Mr. S Ramakrishnan, a director liable to retire by
rotation who does not seek reappointment

4. - | Appointment of Mr. Praveer Sinha as Director
5 Appointment of Mr. Ajay Kapoor as Director

Signed this................... dayof......ccceeees 2018



Affix
revenue
stamp

(Signature of sharéholde_r)
(Signature of first proxyholder)
(Signature of second proxy holder)

(Signature of third proxy holder)
Notes:

(1) This form of proxy in order to be elective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting.

(2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. :

(3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceedlng fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shali not act as a proxy for any other person or sharehoider. '

(4) ** This is only optional. Please put a 'X' in the appropriate column against the
resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against
any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she
thinks appropriate.

(8) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attendlng the meetlng in person
if he so wishes.

(6) In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufﬁCEent, but names
of all the joint holders should be stated.




